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Facal-Tòisich

A’ gluasad air adhart chun ar dàrna deichead mar Phàirc Nàiseanta, tha sinn a’ 

cumail oirnn ’s a’ togail ris na chaidh a chur ri cùisean le mòran bhuidhnean agus 

tòrr a bharrachd co-obrachadh ann thar raon farsaing de chom-pàirtichean,  

de ghnìomhachasan ionadaile agus de na coimhearsnachdan againn.

’S e toradh an dol-an-sàs seo ach mòran bhuannachdan don eaconamaidh, don àrainneachd 
agus don luchd-còmhnaidh ’s don luchd-tadhail againn.

Tha ar n-aithisg bhliadhnail a’ cur cuideam air cuid dhe na sàr-eisimpleirean-sa a thaobh mar a 
tha co-obrachadh air taic a chumail ri ar n-amasan maraon a chor is gun soirbhich leis a’ Phàirc 
Nàiseanta. 

Taobh a-staigh ar raon-fòcais a thaobh Glèidhteachais, tha sinn pròiseil às ar ro-innleachd ùr, 
‘Fiadh-Phàirc 2020’. 

Tha ar n-amas a thaobh Na Dh’fhiosraicheas Luchd-tadhail sa Phàirc Nàiseanta – a ghabhas 
cur an coimeas ris an rud as fheàrr san domhain – air a choileanadh tro ghrunn phròiseactan is 
iomairtean eadar-dhealaichte, nam measg ùrachadh nach beag air ar goireasan luchd-tadhail 
anns na h-ionadan-tadhail as motha iarrtas. Thàinig adhartas a thaobh cur-an-gnìomh ar 
Plana-stiùiridh 5 Lochan gu buil le leasachadh ann an aon dhe na h-àiteachan as trainge sna 
Tròisichean, ’s iad sin Loch Lùbnaig is Loch Lùbnaig Beag, an dà dhiubh a-nis air a ruith ’s a 
stiùireadh le uachdaran-fearainn is gnìomhachas ionadail. 

Taobh a-staigh Leasachadh Dùthchail, thòisich co-chomhairleachadh mòr mar ullachadh air 
ar Plana Leasachaidh Ionadail ùr – a tha aithnichte mar LIVE Park sa Bheurla – agus bidh seo 
a’ toirt buaidh air ar poileasaidh dealbhaidh o 2016 agus sealladh 20 bliadhna a chruthachadh 
a thaobh Còmhnaidh (Living), Cur-an-seilbh (Investing), Tadhail (Visiting) is Fiosrachadh 
(Experiencing) sa Phàirc Nàiseanta. 

Ann an Lùnastail 2013 bha Loch Laomainn mar àite-tadhail a thaobh Snàmh Mòr na h-Alba, 
le còrr is 1,900 neach-snàimh an-sàs sa chùis. Shoirbhich gu mòr leis an tachartas seo, rud a 
thug buaidh mhòr eaconamach air an sgìre ionadail ’s a chum taic ri lìbhrigeadh ar ro-innleachd 
Na Dh’fhiosraicheas Luchd-tadhail. 

Tha sinn beò ann an linn sam bi tòrr dhùbhlan oirnn a thaobh atharrachadh agus ùr-
ghnàthachadh, agus tha misneachd againn gu bheil Ùghdarras Pàirc Nàiseanta Loch 
Laomainn & nan Tròisichean ann an deagh shuidheachadh leantainn oirnn gus seo a 
dhèanamh gu buannachd gach neach aig a bheil ùidh sa phàirt àraid seo den domhain. 

Fiona Logan 
Ceannard

Linda NicAoidh
Neach-gairm 
Ùghdarras Pàirc Nàiseanta Loch Laomainn & nan Tròisichean



Foreword

Moving forward into our second decade as a National Park, we continue to build 

on the great contributions of many organisations and enjoy greater collaboration 

across a wide range of partners, local businesses and our communities.

The outcome of this engagement has led 
to significant benefits for the economy, 
the environment and for our residents and 
visitors.

This annual report highlights some of 
these great examples of how partnership 
working has supported our shared vision 
for success of the National Park.

Within our focus area of Conservation  
we are proud to have developed our  
new strategy for nature conservation  
‘Wild Park 2020’.

Our aspiration to deliver a National Park  
Visitor Experience that compares with  
the best in the world is being realised  
through a number of diverse projects  
and initiatives, including significant  

upgrading of our visitor facilities in  
our most popular visitor destinations.  
Progress on the implementation of our  
5 Lochs Management Plan resulted in the 
development of one of our busiest areas 
in the Trossachs, Loch Lubnaig and Loch 
Lubnaig Beag, both of which are now being 
run and managed by a local land-owner 
and business.  

Within Rural Development, a major 
consultation to inform the preparation of 
our new Local Development Plan – known 
as LIVE Park has started and will influence 
planning policy from 2016 and create a 20 
year vision for Living, Investing,Visiting and 
Experiencing the National Park.

In August 2013 Loch Lomond played host 
to the Great Scottish Swim which saw over 
1,900 swimmers taking part. 

The event was a huge success, generating 
significant economic impact to the local 
area and supporting the delivery of our 
Visitor Experience strategy.

Challenging times continue to demand 
that we adapt and innovate and we are 
confident that Loch Lomond & The 
Trossachs National Park Authority is well-
placed to continue to do this for the benefit 
of everyone with an interest in this very 
special part of the world.

 
Fiona Logan 

Chief Executive Officer 

Linda McKay 
Convener

Loch Lomond & The Trossachs  
National Park Authority

Fiona Logan Linda McKay 
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Our mission  
is to be the 
vital force in 
protecting  
and enhancing 
this iconic 
National Park



“ Loch Lomond & The Trossachs is one of the 

most beautiful parts of Scotland, is steeped in 

history and is remembered and celebrated in 

song. Like many of us, it’s a place I know well 

from numerous visits over the years.”

First Minister Alex Salmond

This page: Loch Achray, Trossachs

Opposite page: Sunset over Lake of Menteith © Paul Barr



Introduction
Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park was created in July 2002 

under the National Parks (Scotland) Act 2000 to safeguard an area of 

outstanding and diverse landscapes, habitats and communities, parts  

of which were coming under severe visitor and recreational pressures. 

The ethos of National Park Authorities in Scotland is collaboration across public and 
private organisations. We are a local delivery body governed by a predominantly 
elected board, with a national remit. 

Throughout 2013/14 we continued to make significant progress on our three 
outcomes of Conservation, Visitor Experience and Rural Development, and 
our various activities and key achievements within these areas are highlighted 
throughout this Annual Report.
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OUR TEAMS 

As a Non-Departmental Public Body 
(NDPB), the Park Authority is directly 
funded by the Scottish Government  
and is accountable to Scottish Ministers 
and the Scottish Parliament.

The National Park Authority’s role is 
to coordinate the delivery of the four 
statutory aims to secure a sustainable 
future for this very special part of Scotland.

The National Parks (Scotland) Act 2000 
sets out four National Park aims, to:

n	 Conserve and enhance the natural 
and cultural heritage of the area

n	 Promote sustainable use of the 
natural resources of the area

n	 Promote understanding and 
enjoyment (including enjoyment in 
the form of recreation) of the special 
qualities of the area by the public

n	 Promote sustainable social and 
economic development of the area’s 
communities.

The National Park Authority is governed 
by a Board of 17 Members (see page 44), 
who are either appointed by the Scottish 
Government following competitive 
recruitment, elected by local residents or 
nominated by the four local authorities 
within the Park - West Dunbartonshire, 
Argyll & Bute, Stirling and Perth & Kinross.

This Annual Report is a summary of the 
National Park Authority’s activity between 
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014. It includes 
some of the main achievements under 
our three areas of work into which we 
encapsulate the four National Park aims, 
all supported by an effective and efficient 
Corporate Services function.

THE NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY
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Conservation

An internationally renowned landscape 
where the natural beauty, ecology and the 
cultural heritage are positively managed and 
enhanced for future generations.

OUR KEY AREAS OF WORK

Visitor Experience

A high quality, authentic experience for visitors, 
with many opportunities to appreciate and 
enjoy the natural and cultural heritage, within 
an internationally-renowned landscape that 
compares to the best on offer around the world.

Corporate Services

Ensuring effective, efficient and 
innovative use of our resources 
to deliver the National Park 
Authority’s services to the 
highest standard.

Rural Development

In the National Park, businesses and communities 
thrive and people live and work sustainably in a high 
quality environment.

Annual Report & Accounts 2013–14	 11



The National Park Partnership Plan describes 
the vision and outcomes for the whole 
National Park area and requires contributions 
from many different organisations.  Delivery 
of the outcomes within the Partnership 
Plan is the responsibility of all the 
organisations that operate in the Park and 
the Plan is underpinned by a set of Individual 
Partnership Agreements with key public 
sector organisations. 

The second year of the Park Partnership 
Plan saw successful delivery of actions 
which included the delivery of an intensive 
programme for the control of non-native 
species, improved threshold signage, 
continuing support for the National Park 
Community Partnership, delivery of a 
successful programme of events to support 
the Year of Natural Scotland and awarding 
planning consent for a high volume of small 
scale hydro schemes. 

National Park threshold signage A82

Get Active event - Year of Natural Scotland 2013

1

2

THE NATIONAL PARK PARTNERSHIP PLAN 2012-2017 

1

2



NATIONAL PARKS DELIVERING  
SIGNIFICANT BENEFITS FOR SCOTLAND
Although they are unique in their own right, 
both of Scotland’s National Parks share 
the same four statutory aims and many 
common outcomes. Both National Park 
Authorities contribute to the Scottish 
Government’s purpose of creating a more 
successful country, with opportunities 
for all of Scotland to flourish through 
increasing sustainable economic growth. 
Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National 
Park Authority continued to support 

delivery of the Scottish Government’s 
National Performance Framework. In 2013-
14 Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National 
Park contributed directly to 10 of the 
Government’s 16 strategic outcomes. 

Our achievements demonstrate the 
contribution we make to the Scottish 
Government’s purpose and relevant 
strategic outcomes, as illustrated in the 
table below and throughout this report.

No. Scottish Government  
Strategic Outcome

Examples of achievements this year

2 We realise our full economic potential 
with more and better employment 
opportunities for our people.

Delivery of a successful tourism conference, encouraging collaborative working to 
maximise the economic benefits of our National Park assets with a focus on wildlife tourism.  
Completion of our first phase of the five lochs project; Loch Lubnaig and Lubnaig Beag.  
Successful delivery of “The Great Scottish Swim” which resulted in significant economic 
impact with 50% of participants and spectators coming from outwith Scotland.  Continued 
development and promotion of the Waterbus service, with a new pontoon being built in 
Drumkinnon Bay, in partnership with Scottish Enterprise.

4 Our young people are successful 
learners, confident individuals, 
effective contributors and 
responsible citizens.

In partnership with the John Muir Trust, 162 young people completed the Discovery level of 
the John Muir Award.  Education travel grants enabled 27 schools, 10 outreach groups and 
over 1,200 young people  to participate in outdoor learning activities.  123 teachers and senior 
educators attended learning events to encourage the use of the National Park as a learning 
resource to deliver Curriculum for Excellence.

6 We live longer, healthier lives. Delivery of a popular National Park Get Active event.  Start of the implementation of the 
Outdoor Recreation Plan; extension of the Walk in the Park health walks and National 
Park Mobility Project. Continued support of Countryside Trust.  Promoting the diverse 
opportunities to get active in the park including walking, cycling, kayaking, climbing, biking  
and archery.

9 We live our lives safe from crime, 
disorder and danger.

Excellent partnership working with Police Scotland to continue to deliver Operation 
Ironworks.  The excellent weather in the summer of 2013 resulted in significant increases 
in visitor numbers who were greeted and encouraged to enjoy our beautiful loch shores 
responsibly by our Ranger service.

10 We live in well-designed, sustainable 
places where we are able to access 
the amenities and services we need.

Launch of our innovative and engaging LIVE Park campaign to support the Local 
Development Plan.  Support for the significant increase in hydro-scheme planning 
applications.  Increase year on year in our planning performance.

11 We have strong, resilient and 
supportive communities where 
people take responsibility for their 
own actions and how they affect 
others.

Continued support for community engagement and community action planning;  
Community Grants Scheme and financial and in-kind support to the National Park  
Community Partnership.  Charrette events within local communities on the future  
of the Park’s settlements and communities were successfully delivered.  

12 We value and enjoy our built and 
natural environment and protect 
it and enhance it for future 
generations.

Consultation on Wild Park 2020, the National Park’s Biodiversity Strategy, was completed 
and approved. The National Park supported the Scottish Scenic Routes initiative with the 
development of three pilot viewpoints.  Scotland’s largest ranger service  continues to 
encourage responsible use of the National Park’s magnificent natural assets.

13 We take pride in a strong, fair and 
inclusive national identity.

Ambassadors for our National Park, we continue to actively engage with national initiatives 
such as Year of Natural Scotland, launch of the John Muir Way, Great Trossachs Forest  and 
2015 Scotland’s Year of Food and Drink. Continued support for cultural heritage grants 
enhances our built environment.

14 We reduce the local and global 
environmental impact of our 
consumption and production.

Review of opportunities to reduce our carbon footprint in areas such as Ranger patrol routes 
and waste and increase use of electronic communications and more environmentally friendly 
transportation.

16 Our public services are high quality, 
continually improving, efficient and 
responsive to local people’s needs.

Continuing achievement of efficiency targets whilst maintaining the delivery of quality 
services.
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The underpinning theme of the National Park Authority’s Conservation 

activity has been our successes in collaborative working. This is 

best demonstrated in the fantastic commitment of our wide range 

of partners to the development and delivery of our new nature 

conservation strategy ‘Wild Park 2020’. 

CONSERVATION

Approved by our Board in March, the Wild 
Park 2020 campaign will be launched 
publicly in the summer of 2014. Through 
Wild Park 2020, we aim to highlight the 
importance of the Park for wildlife and the 
exemplary work already being undertaken 
in this leading location for nature 
conservation in Scotland. Our focus will be 
on delivering the ‘Wild Challenges’ agreed 
with our partners as required to make a 
step-change for conservation outcomes 
in the Park.

Our working relationship with land 
managers is key to the delivery of  
such aims.

In this year, we progressed a number 
of Whole Farm and Whole Estate Plans 
with the aim of improving business’s 
economic and environmental sustainability. 
One completed plan has resulted in a 
planning application for a new campsite, 
the installation of a biomass boiler and 
a programme of work to improve the 
biodiversity on the holding.
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We were grateful to secure funding 
from the Scottish Government’s Green 
Stimulus Fund to undertake desk-top and 
ground-truthing surveys of the extent 
and condition of the peatlands within 
the Park. Our ultimate aim is to work with 
land managers to restore any degraded 
peatlands to enhance their value as 
important habitats and stores for carbon 
and floodwaters.

We also worked successfully with 
the landowners of some of the Park’s 
historic designed landscapes to restore 
characteristic features such as parkland 
tree planting at Drymen and at Callander.

We have been successful too in providing 
local communities and volunteers with 
opportunities to engage in practical 
conservation.

Discovering the value of peatland

Eradicating Japanese knotweed

Improvement works on A82 at Pulpit Rock

1

1

2

2

3

3

Seven local volunteers have been trained 
up to control invasive non-native plants 
(Japanese knotweed, Himalyan balsam, 
skunk cabbage and giant hogweed) 
in over 50 locations in the upper Tay 
catchment. Feedback from land managers 
and communities shows that significant 
progress is being made, but this is a long-
term commitment and it may take up to 
a further five years to eradicate these 
invasive species. We are supporting the 
River Forth Fisheries Trust and encouraging 
the Loch Lomond Fisheries Trust to take 
this same approach.

We know from the Callander Charette that 
there is community desire for Callander 
to be the ‘Outdoor capital of the National 
Park’ and the ‘Gateway to the Highlands’. 
We instigated further discussion with the 
Callander community groups and other 
stakeholders about the possibility of 
the Heritage Lottery Fund’s Landscape 
Partnership programme helping to deliver 
these aims. We plan to support a feasibility 
study in the year ahead.

Lastly, we continue to build effective 
partnerships with our public and third 
sector partners.

Design for current and future construction 
works on the A82 and A83 involved close 
collaborative work with Transport Scotland 
and their contractors. Our expertise in 
landscape, ecology, outdoor recreation 
and tourism has been vital in shaping these 
high profile tourist and transport route 
projects.

Adding value to these projects, we 
supported Friends of Loch Lomond & 
The Trossachs and Friends of the West 
Highland Line in projects to remove tree 
and shrub growth where it was inhibiting 
the views from our road and rail networks.
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We are increasingly involved in working with SEPA and Local 
Authorities to develop flood management plans and the measures 
to safeguard and improve the ecological status of water-bodies in 
the Park.

Over the year, we also worked closely with:

n	 RSPB Scotland and SNH to produce the first five-year 
management plan for the new RSPB Loch Lomond Nature 
Reserve near Gartocharn

n	 Forestry Commission Scotland and the River Forth Fisheries 
Trust on water vole conservation in the Trossachs through 
control of non-native North American mink

n	 Scottish Wildlife Trust in support of the Savings Scotland’s 
Red Squirrels Project which is showing a retreat of invasive 
grey squirrels and recolonisation by reds in locations such as 
Strathyre and the Trossachs

Water Vole conservation

Working with RSPB Scotland at Wards Estate

Recolonisation of Red Squirrels in the Park

Greenland Whitefronted geese

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4
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VISITOR MANAGEMENT
Education, outreach and inclusion 

Scotland’s National Parks provide a 
fantastic opportunity to deliver the 
Curriculum for Excellence through outdoor 
learning. During the 2013/14 year the 
National Park supported 118 outdoor 
learning and outreach engagement visits 
to the Park, delivering over 850 hours of 
staff time. We engaged with 2,551 children 
and young people and 618 adults. 82 
schools and 36 groups were supported; 
including eight additional support needs 
schools and equalities groups. Around 
one third of all engagement was offered 
to schools and groups from within the 
National Park. We worked in partnership to 
support an additional six other educational 
programmes such as Safety 4 Kidz, 
supporting nearly 1,000 children and young 
people.

John Muir Award

This year has been the start of a strong 
partnership with the John Muir Trust. The 
project joint funds a part time member 
of staff to work across the National Park, 
alongside rangers and other delivery 
organisations, increasing our capacity 
to broaden the understanding and 
participation in the John Muir Award. 
Rangers supported seven schools to 
achieve their awards in the National Park 
with 120 hours of their time supporting 162 
young people to achieve their ‘Discovery’ 
level award, including three additional 
support needs groups. 

Educational Travel Grant

The Educational Travel Grant awarded £6k 
of funding to enable 27 schools and groups 
to visit the National Park on 34 occasions; 
supporting 17 schools, 10 outreach groups 
and a total of 1,259 individuals to engage 
with the National Park who would otherwise 
not been able to afford the transport costs. 

VISITOR EXPERIENCE
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Career Long Professional Learning

Six partnership Career Long Professional 
Learning events were delivered, supporting 
123 teachers and senior leaders to increase 
their capacity to use the National Park as a 
learning resource to deliver the Curriculum 
for Excellence. 

Visitor Management Plans

The 5 Lochs visitor management targets 
for the year were either complete or 
on track. The highlight for the year 
was the successful delivery of the first 
infrastructure development at the two Loch 
Lubnaig sites; completed in November 
2013.  The new facilities included toilets, 
kiosk, camping area and parking including 
over-night motorhome bays. The new 
tenants were ready to operate from the 
start of the 2014 season.

The three year report to ministers was 
completed for the East Loch Lomond 
camping byelaws and highlighted the 
transformation of the area to what is now 
enjoyed by families and visitors as well as 
helping local business development.

Countryside Facilities 

The National Parks many and varied paths, car parks, picnic sites, piers and pontoons  
were maintained, repaired and upgraded to ensure a safe and enjoyable visitor experience. 
A combination of in-house maintenance by the Ranger Service and external contractors 
dealt with a variety of actions including vegetation management, litter picking, bin 
emptying, tree works, landscaping and regular site inspections across all our managed 
sites.  

Scottish Scenic Routes

The Scottish Government committed funds to the development of pilot architectural 
interventions along Scottish Scenic Routes. £370k was secured by the Park Authority 
to deliver the first three pilot scenic viewpoints. 

Inveruglas Falls of Falloch Loch Lubnaig Beag

The first of three Scottish Scenic Routes installations was completed at the Falls of Falloch. 
Construction of the Loch Lubnaig Beag installation was completed in May 2014 and  
the design for Inveruglas was finalised and construction will begin later in 2014.   
The installations provide unique viewing platforms at places of natural beauty  
adding to the visitors experience of the National Park.  

New Loch Lubnaig visitor facility

Footpath maintenance by our Ranger Service

Scenic routes: ‘Woven Sound’ Falls of Falloch

Scenic Routes: ‘Faerie Hollow’ Loch Lubnaig Beag

1

1

2

2

3

3

MAINTAINING THE PARK

4

4

4
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Outdoor Recreation Plan

The Outdoor Recreation Plan was approved 
by the National Park Board in June 2013. 
It outlines commitments and intentions 
held by all stakeholders that will enhance 
outdoor recreation opportunities across 
the Park over the next five years. 

Actions completed include;

n	 Purchase of two mobility scooters for 
use in the Park and two trial events 
successfully delivered as part of the 
Park Mobility project

n	 Lochearnhead to St Fillans old railway 
project – installation of Glen Tarken 
bridge –led by the community with 
support from the National Park

n	 Signage and gates installed on the 
Wee Wood north link core path at 
Gartmore

n	 National Park grant aided Helensburgh 
and District Access Trust £12k to 
upgrade the Arrochar–Three Lochs 
Way footpath link.

A Heritage Lottery Fund joint bid with 
Cairngorms National Park Authority 
was developed to tackle erosion of the 
two National Park’s mountain paths, 
unfortunately the project was not 
successful but was very well received by the 
Heritage Lottery Fund Board and a revised 
joint bid was submitted with a decision 
expected in July 2014.

Operation Ironworks

Operation Ironworks completed its 
sixth year of coordinated partnership 
working, but this year with one police 
force, Police Scotland, under the new 
centralised structure. The season proved 
to be challenging with increased numbers 
of visitors to the Park as a result of the 
prolonged periods of warmer weather 
particularly in July.   Over 6,000 police officer 
hours were worked on Ironworks duties, 158 
by National Park  Special Constables and 
169 by Police Scotland Special Constables. 
Only two serious incidents took place, at 
Loch Earn and Loch Lubnaig, which were 
dealt with swiftly and bail conditions granted 
preventing the accused from entering the 
Park area. 

National Park Police Officer

The National Park funded Police Officer 
post continues to provide an important 
link between the Park Authority and Police 
Scotland.  As well as being involved in 
Operation Ironworks and wildlife crime work 
within the National Park, training has been 
provided for the Ranger Service on note 
taking, wildlife crime and angling and the law. 

Ranger Service

Visitor Management on land and water was 
the service priority for the summer. July 
was an exceptionally busy month with the 
prolonged good weather bringing many 
visitors.

The strategies the Ranger Service has for 
dealing with busy weekends were tested, 
including byelaw enforcement, and the 
service was able to operate effectively. 
Whilst busy periods inevitably stretch 
resources, the feedback from visitors 
was good. This year greater emphasis 
was placed on ensuring patrolling took 
place when the Park was busiest. The 
staggered start to seasonal contracts 
and the re-prioritisation of patrolling on 
quieter days meant that Rangers carried 
out almost 1,600 patrols this season and 
spent 9,000 hours patrolling. National Park 
Rangers worked closely with Police Scotland 
during the season and particularly in July 
to ensure that issues relating to byelaws, 
anti-social behaviour and public safety were 
reported and addressed by the appropriate 
organisation.

National Park Mobility project

Working together - Operation Ironworks

Ranger with walkers at Balmaha Visitor Centre

Glen Tarken Bridge renovation project
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4

RESPECT THE PARK
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Volunteer Ranger advising vistor

Our dedicated team of Volunteers 

Conservation volunteers in action

1

2

3

Volunteering 
As ever, the number of people keen to come out and volunteer with the National Park is 
fantastic. This year our volunteers gave over 9,000 hours to support the delivery of the 
National Park aims. 

Involving volunteers in the work of the National Park not only gives them an opportunity 
to develop an increased understanding and awareness of the National Park Authority 
and what we do, but also to give something back to an area they love. During 2013/14 we 
continued developing our volunteer ranger role and the ongoing delivery of the practical 
conservation volunteer role, with a specific focus on working with partners.

Volunteer Rangers

Throughout the year, Volunteer Rangers 
were out and about inspiring visitors to 
enjoy the National Park. They contributed 
4,000 hours in 2013/14 and were also 
involved in supporting the delivery of events 
and education. We recruited an additional 
25 volunteer Rangers during October and 
November taking our total to 64 trained  
and committed volunteers.

Conservation Volunteers

The National Park’s longest running and 
most popular volunteer opportunity has 
continued to engage a large number of 
people in practical conservation tasks. 
Volunteers get involved in a wide variety 
of activities led by the National Park and 
partner organisations.  

Volunteers support the delivery of a wide 
range of Park Partnership Plan actions,  
such as maintenance of recreation 
provision, species management and 
outdoor learning. 

Partnership opportunities continue to 
develop with Woodland Trust Scotland 
leading our National Park volunteers in 
supporting the Great Trossachs Forest 
Project and further partnerships are 
developing with Forestry Commission 
Scotland and RSPB. 

Throughout 2013/14 volunteers gave  
over 4,900 hours and supported over  
180 events, an equivalent of over 700 
volunteer days.

3
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Fernery, Benmore Botanic Gardens

Tourism Businesses Conference

Loch Lomond Waterbus
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Tourism
We have been working with partners and businesses to deliver the actions set in our Tourism Strategy 2012- 2017 
working towards our vision of:  

“A high quality, authentic experience for visitors with many  
opportunities to appreciate and enjoy the natural and cultural  
heritage within an internationally renowned landscape that  
compares to the best on offer around the world.”

Growing Business Leadership 

We continue to support the group of 
businesses from across the Park that have 
come together to form a National Park 
Destination Group. 

This industry group has worked closely 
with us, providing an industry voice, a 
commercial view on tourism development 
proposals and has helped to grow a shared 
vision between public and private sector 
for improving the visitor experience.  

National Park Tourism Businesses Conference

To encourage business leadership and collaborative working we 
held our annual conference for tourism businesses in March 2014 
at our headquarters at Carrochan. The focus was making the 
most of the assets in the Park particularly the opportunities in 
wildlife tourism. The conference included good practice examples 
and opportunities for businesses to share their ideas and an 
opportunity for 100 businesses who attended to network, share 
innovations and encourage collaborative working.
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Improving the Visitor Experience  

Our tourism strategy identifies areas 
of opportunity to improve our visitor 
experience and we have been working 
proactively with businesses to develop  
these opportunities.    

Food and Drink 

Working with the National Park Destination 
Group in partnership with Love Loch 
Lomond and with support from Scottish 
Enterprise, we have encouraged an industry 
led three year plan to raise awareness of 
and improve our food and drink offering in 
the National Park. The group plans to hold 
events to promote the use of local suppliers 
and is working on projects for Scotland’s 
Year of Food & Drink 2015.   

Cycling and Walking 

We commissioned a study to assess the 
tourism cycling on offer and formulated 
recommendations for growing cycling 
tourism in the Park. Over 120 businesses 
and partners including the Forestry 
Commission and Great Trossachs Forest 
contributed their views and ideas. The 
recommendations for improvements will 
make it easier for visitors, from families to 
more extreme sports cyclists, to explore 
the Park and will be implemented in 2014.  

The new long distance walking route, the 
John Muir Way, led by Scottish Natural 
Heritage, was completed. We provided 
support to the first two sections of 
this magnificent 134 mile route from 
Helensburgh to John Muir’s birthplace in 
Dunbar part of which runs through the 
Park. The new route provides another 
great opportunity for encouraging cycling 
and walking in the Park and its surrounding 
areas. 

Waterbus Services Infrastructure

In partnership with Scottish Enterprise, 
works began on the installation of a new 
pontoon in Drumkinnon Bay. This project is 
to stimulate the private sector to develop 
increased waterbus services. This aims to 
generate business investment, revenue 
creation and more visitors experiencing the 
destinations around Loch Lomond. 

“The Great Scottish Swim” 

We led a successful bid to bring the 
Great Scottish Swim to Loch Lomond in 
August 2013 in partnership with West 
Dunbartonshire Council and Event 
Scotland. Over 1,900 people participated 
and the event generated significant 
economic impact to the local area with 
more than 50% of participants coming  
from outwith Scotland.  

Promoting local produce

Great Scottish Swim, Loch Lomond

Cycling at Loch Katrine

Installation of new pontoon 
at Drumkinnon Bay
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Year of Natural Scotland 2013  

We had a strategic role in the national delivery of the Year of Natural Scotland.  We 
delivered a range of activities and events to maximise the impact of the year for the 
National Park, which included: 

n	 Working with Visit Scotland to deliver a promotional campaign promoting the Park 
and hosting familiarisation trips for more than 20 journalists and travel writers 

n	 National Park’s Week - Get Active event was hugely successful, attracting 6,000 
people to get out and try something new in the outdoors such as kayaking, rock 
climbing, biking and archery

	 We have been collaborating with Nacionale Vitae Activia, whose work aims to create 
an intense and long-lasting emotional tie with the landscape - to produce Island 
Drift a fine art photographic work which used moving and static light sources and 
multiple camera positions to produce digital images. This work will be presented as 
an exhibition in 2014

n	 We supported an Artist in Residence project with help from Creative Scotland.  Our 
invitation to take inspiration from John Muir and look at the Park from a different 
angle resulted in huge interest and 45 artists submitting proposals. Steve Messam, 
the chosen artist, developed proposals for an exciting temporary installation

n	 A guide to events and activities in the National Park distributed to visitor 
information centres and businesses

Loch Lomond Shores

Improvement works on Stoneymollan roundabout 

Get Active event, Loch Lomond Shores 
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Loch Lomond Shores 

We worked with Scottish Enterprise to 
further develop Loch Lomond Shores as 
a gateway destination. This included the 
relocation of the Bird of Prey Centre to 
provide another family friendly experience 
in the Park. 

Interpretive and Information Signage

The roll out of National Park brand and 
signage across the Park continued with: 

n	 A programme of National Park 
interpretation in each of the Visit 
Scotland visitor information centres 
in the Park to encourage visitors to 
explore the area

n	 The first phase of developing 
welcome signage for the towns and 
villages in the Park has begun with  
a plan to roll this out in partnership  
with local communities over the  
next five years. This aims to enhance 
the welcome visitors can expect in 
the Park.

We worked with Scotland TranServ, 
Transport Scotland and the Friends of 
Loch Lomond & The Trossachs to take 
advantage of maintenance and drainage 
works taking place on Stoneymollan 
roundabout to carry out improvements  
to fill in and colour the flying geese, as  
well as plant trees and shrubs. This project 
completed the original design and now 
provides an impressive welcome to the 
National Park for visitors and residents alike. 
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RURAL DEVELOPMENT
Our aim is to become the leading Planning Authority in Scotland, 

providing excellent service and high quality advice to assist service users 

and all our stakeholders.

Over the last year, we have continued 
to create a customer focused service 
for all our stakeholders. This includes 
an emphasis on public engagement, 
community involvement and increased 
collaborative working with our key partners. 

The National Park is a special place of 
national significance. Its world-famous 
landscapes and internationally recognized 
ecology need to be conserved and 
enhanced in order to achieve sustainable 
development. 

We continue to work collaboratively to 
deliver Conservation, Visitor Experience 
and Rural Development outcomes.  In 
doing this, there have been a whole range 
of successes; from the way we have 
efficiently processed a heavy workload of 
planning applications, delivered innovative 
community engagement and supported 
significant capacity building within 
communities. 

Supporting community projects, both 
through our advisory and funding role 
continues to make a real difference. 
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Forward Planning
The Local Plan has played a positive role 
attracting inward investors to key strategic 
sites.

A major consultation to inform the 
preparation of our new Local Development 
Plan – to be known as LIVE Park – was 
approved by our Board in March for a 10 
week period. This will update and replace 
our current Local Plan. Significant design 
led engagement with a whole range of 
partner organisations, our communities, 
businesses and landowners was 
undertaken throughout 2013/14  
along with extensive research into  
key development issues.

Over the last year we have negotiated:

n	 A commuted sums protocol with 
Stirling Council and currently 
negotiating similar agreements 
with other partner Local Housing 
Authorities

n	 Contracted with Link Housing 
Association and Rural Stirling 
Housing Association to enable 
new, small scale affordable housing 
projects, which attracted partner 
funding

Two entries were shortlisted from our 
suite of Supplementary Planning Guidance 
that supports our Local Plan. Callander 
Development & Flooding was shortlisted 
in the 2013 Scottish Awards for Quality in 
Planning. Our Sustainable Design guidance 
was awarded a commendation. 

Following the 2011 Callander charrette one 
of the priorities was to improve Callander 
Ancaster Square works which were 
completed in March. 

Our first Built Heritage Repair Grant 
Scheme delivered support for works 
ranging from replacement of louvered 
windows with double-glazed timber sash 
and case, lime pointing, to new traditional 
style signage and the repair of a mill lade on 
nine traditional buildings.

The successful projects were located 
across the Park in Kilmun, Gartmore, 
Callander, Killin, Glen Dochart, Tarbet 
and Balquhidder and included six listed 
buildings. The £20,000 Built Heritage 
Repair Grant fund for 2013/14 delivered 
projects to a value of £66,809. 

Affordable housing in Lochgoilhead

Chimney restoration - Built  heritage repair Grant

Sketch from community engagement session

2013 Scottish Awards for Quality in Planning
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Communities

Under the  Community Grant Scheme 15 awards were made with a 
total of £20,121 being awarded. Projects supported included: 

n	 Renovating all the benches in Drymen Square

n	 Repairs and improvements at Tyndrum Village Hall

Throughout 2013-14 we offered support through our ongoing 
service level agreement providing funds and in-kind resources to 
the Community Partnership. Achievements include:

n	 Completion of Community Action Plans for Arrochar, Tarbet 
& Ardlui, Balqhuidder, Lochearnhead & Strathyre, Strathfillan, 
and Sandbank 

n	 The Skills Partnership was launched by Angela Constance 
MSP, Cabinet Secretary for Training, Youth and Women’s 
Employment and three new staff were recruited to deliver 
the project

This year also saw more dedicated development and grant support 
awarded to ambitious, community-led initiatives.  Highlights 
include Paths in the Park – which saw installation of a new 100+ foot 
‘Bailey’ bridge at Glentarken – the missing link in the St Fillans to 
Lochearnhead cycling and walking path.

Historic Kilmun: The completion and opening of the new visitor 
facility – the first phase of the £1m project to conserve and 
create access to what has recently been called ‘Rosslyn Chapel 
of the West’. The refurbishment work is well underway with the 
completion of the visitor shelter, path upgrades and opening of the 
visitor centre.  Works are due for completion in September 2014.

Callander CARS

The final year of Callander Conservation 
Area Regeneration Scheme (CARS) was its 
busiest yet, delivering 21 projects to a total 
value of £305,720.  This included projects 
covering slate roof replacement, renewing 
lead work and cast iron rainwater goods, 
traditional sash and case window repairs, 
rebuilding of chimneys and re-pointing of 
stone work. Extensive refurbishment was 
carried out at the James Pringle Weavers 
shop front in Ancaster Square, a particularly 
prominent building, and traditional awning 
repairs were carried out at two other shops.  

1 2

3

Callander CARS project stonework improvements

Skills partnership training session

Ancaster Square improvements, Callander

Argyll Mausoleum visitor shelter
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Development Management 

Planning Performance

Development Management influences 
development proposals to meet the Park 
aims. It is the key mechanism for balancing 
competing interests and making planning 
decisions. The Park determined 325 
applications in 2013-14. 

We are now in our second year of working 
with the Scottish Governments ‘Planning 
Performance Framework’ (PPF) as the key 
tool for monitoring our performance (and 
that of the other 33 Planning Authorities 
of Scotland). This approach has become 
successfully embedded and seeks to 
capture a more rounded picture of planning 
performance, taking account of the quality 
of service delivery, rather than focusing 
so heavily on speed of decision. The new 
approach incorporates a shift toward 
average determination times across the 
range of application types. 

Our second performance report was 
submitted to the Scottish Government in 
October 2013 and received a favourable 
feedback report. It was acknowledged that 
overall the National Park performs strongly 
against the 15 ‘Key Performance Markers’ 

that the Government has identified. In 
particular it was noted that the National 
Park planners make effective use of tools 
such as ‘processing agreements’ to give 
improved certainty to the timescales for 
determining more complex applications. 
Our work, to improve efficiencies in 
determining those applications, which 
require to be subject to ‘planning 
obligations’ was also acknowledged.

From October until the end of 2013 the 
National Park Authority came under 
significant pressure to determine a number 
of complex applications to a deadline of 
31 December. These were applications 
for run-of-river hydro power schemes. 
Through November and December there 
were 15 ‘live’ hydro applications within the 
Park area. These applications required 
expert consideration to ensure that 
any potential landscape and ecological 
impacts were avoided or mitigated. Nine 
of the 15 applications were subject to 
the Environmental Impact Assessment 
process, requiring detailed consideration  
of landscape and ecological aspects.

At the time, we revised our scheme 
of delegated authority to facilitate 
capacity to manage both volume and the 
complex nature of planning applications 
which involve Environmental Impact 
Assessments. 

The performance of the National Park 
Authority to determine as many of 
these applications as possible within the 
timescale was exceptional and is to be 
regarded as a significant contribution 
toward supporting the development of 
the renewable energy sector in Scotland, 
while at the same time ensuring that all 
necessary environmental safeguards and 
mitigation measures are secured. 
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Hydro power station, Glen Falloch 
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Pre-application Advice Service

Our comprehensive pre-application 
advisory service is continuing to prove 
successful, focusing on providing 
constructive advice at an early stage. Our 
planning application approval rate of 96% 
for 2013-14 remains one of the highest 
levels across the whole of Scotland  
(see table).

The pre-application service is a key tool  
to achieve the following additional aims:

n	 Better quality of applications 
at submission, with all required 
supporting information having  
been flagged early

n	 Improved certainty for applicants  
on likely outcome and timescales

n	 Fewer appeals/local reviews

E-planning

The online system continues to prove 
successful with 64% of applications 
submitted online for 2013-14 (see table).

This percentage maintains our position 
among the top performing Scottish 
Planning Authorities in terms of online 
interaction. Nevertheless, we aspire to 
further increase usage and usability at 
every opportunity.

Residential flats, at former garage site, Killin

Housing development in Balloch

Finartmore, under construction, Kilmun
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Applications 
 received

Fee income 
(Financial Year)

Online  
applications 
(E-planning)

Pre-applications 
received

2010/11 317 £127k 42% 270

2011/12 307 £113k 49% 306

2012/13 378 £198k 62% 324

2013/14 325 £292k 64% 277

Renewables and Hydro-power

As highlighted in the Planning performance 
section of the report, run-of-river hydro 
developments featured significantly in the 
National Park Authority application and 
pre-application workload through 2013.  
17 applications for hydro schemes were 
received in 2013 and 10 were determined 
by 31 December. A total of 19 proposals 
were subject to pre-application discussion 
and/or Environmental Impact Assessment 
screening.

These applications contributed to the 
significant increase in fee income that was 
evident across 2013 in comparison with 
previous years. Our Local Plan policies 
support small-scale hydro schemes where 
there will be no significant adverse impacts 
on landscape or ecology of the river system.

Supplementary Planning Guidance  
on renewables was revised and the 
consultative draft was approved at  
the Planning & Access Committee  
and adopted in June 2013. 

The guidance advises that within the Park 
renewable energy from hydro schemes  
is most likely to be from run-of-river 
schemes, with a generating capacity  
of up to 2 megawatts. 

The guide to Best Practice & Mitigation 
included as an Appendix, is aimed at 
providing detailed advice on design, siting, 
reinstatement and mitigation measures. It 
will also signpost and provide links to related 
guidance and information sources.  

National Park Authority officers work closely 
with hydro developers to ensure that the 
construction methods comply with good 
practice techniques in order to ensure the 
impact of the development is minimised 
and restoration of the landscape takes place 
as quickly as possible. We are also piloting 
improved alignment of the consultation 
and consenting processes with SEPA who 
have a separate licensing duty to manage 
abstraction and discharges in relation to 
watercourses.

Application and Fees Table 

Development on the Ground

It has been encouraging to see a range of new developments completed and under 
construction right across the Park. This activity is an important indicator of a growing 
resurgence of confidence in the construction industry. 

Notable schemes commenced include a mixed use (residential and retail) development 
at Balloch riverside, 14 dwelling houses at the former Youth Hostel site in Killin, the Bridge 
of Lochay Hotel site for seven holiday chalets and an ever increasing number of hydro 
scheme developments. The development at the former garage site in Killin also finished 
and is now occupied providing 12 affordable housing units.
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CORPORATE SERVICES
Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park Authority aims to 

maximise benefit to the National Park from the use of all financial 

resources received. 

The Park Authority complies with all 
requirements laid out in the Scottish Public 
Finance Manual and we strive to achieve 
best practice in the delivery of economic, 
efficient and effective services and  
deliver Best Value in the deployment  
of all resources under our control. 

We strive for the effective, efficient and 
innovative use of our resources to deliver 
the Park Authority’s services to the highest 
standard. 

The specialist functions that support the 
delivery of excellence are: 

n	 Corporate Governance and Audit

n	 Human Resource Management

n	 Marketing and Communications

n	 Health and Safety

n	 Finance and Procurement

n	 Information Technology, Telecoms 
and Data Management

n	 Office and Facilities Management
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Board and Committees 

2013-14 was another busy year for the 
National Park Authority’s Board.  As in 
previous years, the Board has considered a 
number of high-profile issues, projects and 
strategies throughout the year. 

In March 2014, National Park  Board 
members reappointed Linda McKay as 
Convener for a further three-year term.
The work of the Board is supported and 
developed by its four standing committees: 
Planning & Access, Audit (both of which 
are required by statute), Strategy and the 
Delivery Group. 

The Planning & Access Committee is 
responsible for determining planning 
applications in categories identified by the 
Scheme of Delegation for Planning. 

Six members of the Planning & Access 
Committee are also members of the Local 
Review Body (LRB), which acts as an appeal 
body for applications determined at officer 
level. 

Although the Park Authority held no 
appeals in 2013-14, there were two appeals 
early in 2014-15 . 

The Audit Committee meets quarterly and 
is responsible for providing scrutiny and 
constructive challenge to Park Authority 
risk management, governance and internal 
control processes. The Audit Committee 
also has responsibility for recommending 
approval the Annual Report & Accounts 
for signature by the Accountable Officer. 
The joint internal audit programme for 
both National Park Authorities continued 
during 2013-14. Where content of audits 
overlapped, one report was presented 
to both Audit Committees continuing 
to enhance opportunities for joint good 
practice  
to be shared and efficiencies made. 

The Delivery Group is responsible for 
overseeing the delivery of the Park 
Authority’s core objectives, financial 
performance and staff resource 
management. Quarterly reports were 
presented to this group highlighting 
performance against the Corporate Plan, 
financial and business performance targets. 

Further information about all our Board 
Members is summarised on pages 44 to 47

Corporate Performance

The organisation handles a number of 
complaints and information requests 
each year – see the table below for more 
information. The number of complaints 
and information requests is broadly similar 
over the last two financial years – notably 
however there was an increase in the 
number of Subject Access Requests 
received in terms of the Data Protection 
Act 1998. 

2012/13 2013/14

Complaints 35 35

Subject Access 
Requests

1 5

Environmental 
Information 
Requests

26 26

Freedom of 
Information 
Requests

39 30

Documentary maker Paul Murton and crew 

National Park Board Members

Caroline Quentin with osprey chick and ranger
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Communications

Interest in the work of the National 
Park Authority across Scotland and the 
wider UK continued throughout 2013-
14. Our presence in local, national and 
international media was frequent and 
generally very positive.  The use of social 
media was targeted to good effect.  Our 
key identified audiences of Park residents, 
visitors, Scottish Government, partner 
organisations and our own staff were all 
kept abreast of a wide variety of stories, 
issues and announcements through a 
broad range of channels.

The Park continued to receive excellent 
TV coverage throughout the year with 
film crews from news and documentaries 
all making their way to Loch Lomond.  We 
facilitated the making of Paul Murton’s 
series ‘Grand Tours of the Scottish Islands’ 
and Caroline Quentin’s ‘National Parks’ 
series featuring Loch Lomond & the 
Trossachs as well as  the Great Scottish 
Swim, which was held at Loch Lomond 
for the first time, attracting major media 
coverage in the run up to and after the 
actual event.

Digital Presence

Our digital presence continued to expand 
and reach even wider with the Park’s 
website attracting 350,000 unique visitors 
during course of the year. The growth 
in website ‘hits’ as well as increased 
engagement through the use of Facebook, 
Twitter, LinkedIn and YouTube stands the 
Park in good stead going forward as we 
continue to develop our digital output 
and target our audiences with relevant, 
appealing content. 

Gaelic Language Plan

The Park’s commitment to the Gaelic 
language through the implementation of 
our Gaelic Language Plan has continued 
throughout the year.   We again offered 
staff and board members Gaelic Language 
training and our bespoke leaflet which 
explains the Gaelic origins of several place 
names within the Park remains as one of 
our most popular amongst visitors to the 
Park.  

Events

2013’s Royal Highland Show provided the 
Park with an opportunity to reach a number 
of audiences and we were particularly 
well-represented along with our partner 
organisations including Scottish Natural 
Heritage, Forestry Commission Scotland, 
SEPA, Animal Health and, of course, our 
sister National Park in the Cairngorms. This 
year we were delighted that our Minister, 
Paul Wheelhouse personally recognised 
the excellent work of our volunteer rangers 
at the Royal Highland Show in June.  

The first Great Scottish Swim on the 
shores of Loch Lomond was hugely 
successful and will hopefully become an 
annual event in the National Park calendar.

The early part of 2014 saw preparations 
for the John Muir Festival, the Year of 
Homecoming and particularly the John 
Muir Conference, which is being led by the 
National Parks.

‘What’s in a name’ Gaelic place names leaflet 

Great Scottish swim Loch Lomond 2013

Paul Wheelhouse MSP with our Volunteers

National Park Twitter feed
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Strategic Report

Introduction

Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National 
Park was created in July 2002 under 
the National Parks (Scotland) Act 2000 
to safeguard an area of outstanding 
and diverse landscapes, habitats and 
communities, parts of which were coming 
under severe visitor and recreational 
pressures. 

The National Parks (Scotland) Act 2000 sets out four National Park aims, to:

n	 Conserve and enhance the natural and cultural heritage of the area

n	 Promote sustainable use of the natural resources of the area

n	 Promote understanding and enjoyment (including enjoyment in the form of 
recreation) of the special qualities of the area by the public

n	 Promote sustainable social and economic development of the area’s communities.

Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park Authority (“the Authority”) presents this 
Statement of Accounts for the year from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 in a format 
directed by Scottish Ministers in accordance with the National Parks (Scotland) Act 2000.  
A copy of the accounts direction is reproduced at page 75.

Board Members & Management Team

Full details of the Board Members are noted 
on pages 44 to 47.  During the financial year 
2013/14, day-to-day management of the 
Authority was undertaken by the Executive 
Team comprising:

n	 Chief Executive –  
Fiona Logan

n	 Director of Operations –  
Gordon Watson

n	 Director of Corporate Services –  
Jaki Carnegie

This organisation structure was 
implemented on 30 May 2013 and Jaki 
Carnegie was appointed as Director of 
Corporate Services on 6 May 2013. 

Notification of interests

The Authority has detailed policies 
governing situations where personal or 
business interests may arise in the activities 
and decisions of the organisation. In such 
situations, Board Members and staff are 
required to disclose the nature of the 
interest and exclude themselves from any 
part of the discussion or decisions relating 
to that matter.  Board Members interests 
are a matter of public record and are 
published on the Authority’s website.

Financial performance

The results for the year to 31 March 2014 
are set out on pages 55 to 74.  

The Authority receives the majority of 
its funding through its Grant in Aid (GIA) 
award from the Scottish Government with 
additional funding being received from 
partner agencies and other sources, mainly 
to jointly fund projects. The Authority 
is expected to manage its budget in 
accordance with its Financial Memorandum 
and the Scottish Public Finance Manual. 

The Authority is expected to ensure that, 
taking one year with another, income from 
Grant in Aid and other income equals 
expenditure. 

The Authority, with prior agreement from 
Scottish Government, has some discretion 
in how it uses its revenue resource and 
transfers revenue budget to capital budget 
during the year to further Conservation, 
Visitor Experience and Rural Development 
objectives.

The Scottish Government provides a total 
resource budget and cash allocation for 
each financial year, which originates from 
the spending review and its subsequent 
approval in the Budget Bill.  During the 
year revisions are agreed with Scottish 
Government in the Spring and Autumn 
budget.  

In 2013/14 the Park Authority received 
additional capital funding during the year 
which enabled greater investment in key 
infrastructure such as; the construction and 
installation of a pontoon at Drumkinnon 
Bay, Balloch; pilot projects as part of the 
Scottish Scenic Routes initiative; upland 
path improvements; the Loch Lubnaig 
camping and picnic sites; National Park 
village signage and new engines for the 
waterborne ranger patrol boat.

The Authority’s gross expenditure for 
2013/14 was £10,471k (2012/13 - 
£9,825k). The 2013/14 expenditure 
includes an impairment in relation to the 
quinquennial asset revaluation of £1,930k.  

After £8,450k of total Grant in Aid received, 
other income of £801k and interest 
received of £2k, the 2013/14 financial 
statements show a deficit of £1,218k 
(2012/13 - £296k surplus, having been 
restated by £105k in relation to pensions 
costs to account for the requirements of 
IAS19).
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Summary of Deficit for the Year £’000

Gross Expenditure 10,471

Grant in Aid (8,450)

Other Income (801)

Interest Receivable (2)

Deficit 1,218

Included within the deficit figure above are some significant non-cash items and Grant in 
Aid that is attributable to the addition of non-current assets.  After excluding these items, 
see the table below, the financial result for 2013/14 is a net expenditure position of £49k 
(2012/13 - £104k net expenditure position).	  
 

£’000

Deficit 1,218

Exclude Grant in Aid transferred for capital expenditure 1,393

Exclude non-cash items

Depreciation (404)

Impairment of non-current assets (1,930)

Deficit on pension assets (81)

Other pensions costs (105)

Net book value of asset disposal (42)

Net Expenditure 49

The Resource Accounting Budget (Depreciation) was contained within budget.

The table below shows how the resources available to the Authority have been utilised 
during the year and how the results have been reported, in accordance with the relevant 
reporting guidelines, to our sponsoring department of Scottish Government, The Scottish 
Government Rural Directorate.

Expenditure financed by GIA GIA award  
(£’000)

Outturn 
(£’000)

Variance 
(£’000)

Resource Departmental Expenditure 
Limit (DEL)

6,498 6,503 (5)

Capital DEL 1,952 1,947 5

Total Grant in Aid 8,450 8,450 0

Non-cash DEL (depreciation) 774 435 339

Expenditure classed as Annually 
Managed Expenditure (AME)

0 2,468 (2,468)

Expenditure financed by other income Income 
(£’000)

Expenditure 
(£’000)

Variance 
(£’000)

Operating expenditure 954 1,053 (99)

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis as the Board and Accountable 
Officer believe that future liabilities will be met from a combination of Grant in Aid from the 
Scottish Government, future grants from partner agencies, and income from chargeable 
activities.

Performance against targets

The Authority achieved its efficiency 
plan target for 2013/14 as defined in the 
Grant in Aid award letter. The Authority 
sets its targets on an annual basis by 
reference to the overriding strategy set 
out in the Corporate Plan. The delivery 
targets for 2013/14 were expressed in an 
annual business plan which was finalised 
and agreed in March 2013. Performance 
against these targets was monitored by 
the Executive Team and reported to Board 
Members at the end of each calendar 
quarter.  Details of the achievements 
under each of the Authority’s themes and 
Scottish Government Strategic Outcomes 
are highlighted in the preceding sections 
of this annual report.  For 2013/14, the 
targets were aligned with the following 
ten National Outcome Targets set by 
the Scottish Government National 
Performance Framework for all public 
agencies:

n	 We realise our full economic potential 
with more and better employment 
opportunities for our people

n	 Our young people are successful 
learners, confident individuals, 
effective contributors and responsible 
citizens

n	 We live longer, healthier lives

n	 We live our lives safe from crime, 
disorder and danger

n	 We live in well designed, sustainable 
places where we are able to access the 
amenities and services we need

n	 We have strong, resilient and 
supportive communities where people 
take responsibility for their own 
actions and how they affect others

n	 We value and enjoy our natural and 
built environment and protect it and 
enhance it for future generations

n	 We take pride in a strong, fair and 
inclusive national identity

n	 We reduce the local and global 
environmental impact of our 
consumption and production

n	 Our public services are high quality, 
continually improving, efficient and 
responsive to local people’s needs.
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Environmental management

The Authority has a comprehensive approach to monitoring our environmental 
performance. In 2013/14 we continued to monitor the levels of CO

2 
generated by our 

buildings and vehicles (the main sources of our CO
2

 emissions). We have replaced a 
number of our vehicle fleet with more efficient models which will have an ongoing impact 
on reducing our overall C0

2
 emissions.

We also began work to improve our system of recording waste generated from our 
Headquarters building, which included participation in European Week for Waste 
Reduction in November 2013 and a staff awareness-raising event featuring speakers 
from Zero Waste Scotland and MITIE. In addition, we continued to abide by our sustainable 
procurement strategy during the year.

The Authority continues to monitor the status of the projects identified within our Carbon 
Management Plan and updates are provided to the Delivery Group on a quarterly basis.

Changes in non-current assets

Movements in non-current assets are shown in note 9 to the accounts. 

The Authority actively manages its non-current assets, covering estates owned by the 
Authority and leasehold properties.  

During the year, the Authority continued with its agreed strategy of delivery through fewer 
but more focussed locations, with a number of properties owned by the Authority now 
subject to lease in the open market.

The lease negotiations with Scottish Enterprise in relation to the Gateway Orientation 
Area, including the Gateway Centre building, at Loch Lomond Shores were concluded 
during the year and the Authority now has a long lease until 2150 on the Gateway 
Orientation Area. In prior years the Gateway Centre building was included in the accounts 
at its open market value, now that the lease has been signed it is more appropriate to value 
this building at its depreciated replacement cost to be consistent with all other specialised 
properties held by the Authority. 

In addition, during the year, the Authority undertook its scheduled quinquennial valuations 
of all land and buildings which resulted in an increase in their net book value of £813k. 
Included within this increase in net book value is an impairment of £1,930k to the value of 
the headquarters building in Balloch and the asset at Loch Lubnaig. 

Gifts and charitable donations

Gifts totalling £154 were made in the year (2012/13 £75).  There were charitable donations 
totalling £54 made in the year (2012/13 nil).

Losses, special payments and write offs

There were no write offs made in the year (2012/13 £30).  There were no losses or special 
payments made in the year. 

Post balance sheet events

The Authority has 17 Board Members and of these the five locally elected members will 
stand for re-election in July 2014 and the appointment term of the six members appointed 
by Scottish Government ends in September 2014.

Supplier payment performance

The Authority observes the Better 
Payment Practice Code and seeks to 
pay suppliers within 10 days of receipt of 
valid invoice in accordance with Scottish 
Government targets set for measurement 
from 1 December 2008.  During the year 
ended 31 March 2014, the Authority paid 
99% (2012/13 – 99%) of all its invoices 
within the terms of this payment policy.  
Against the contracted payment terms of 
30 days, the Authority paid 100% (2012/13 
– 100%) against this target. 

The Authority will continue to work 
towards maintaining this strong payment 
performance.

Collaboration with Cairngorms National 
Park Authority

During the year the Authority continued 
to work in collaboration with Cairngorms 
National Park Authority as recommended 
by the strategic review of the two National 
Park Authorities in Scotland, published 
in November 2008.  Shared services are 
in place for a number of back office and 
procured services and systems. Both 
Authorities also take advantage of sharing 
and learning from good practice in policy 
and initiatives development.

Delivery Group

The Delivery Group, a sub group of the 
Board, continued to provide input and 
support to the Authority on monitoring 
performance in all areas, including human 
resources.  During the year, the Authority 
recorded an average loss of 7.17 days 
per employee due to sickness absence 
(2012/13 – 10.83 days). The Authority 
continues to closely monitor sickness 
absence and provides support through 
our Occupational Health providers and 
Employee Assistance programme.  There 
were no reported losses of personal data in 
the year (2012/2013 – nil).
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Health & Safety

The Health & Safety Committee met 
regularly throughout the year. The 
Authority is continuing to focus on creating 
a Health & Safety culture and this has 
involved a review of our Health & Safety 
policies and procedures, regular Health 
& Safety audits and a number of Health 
& Safety projects such as the review of 
Risk Assessments.  In addition to this 
all employees were offered Health & 
Safety refresher training during the year 
and this will take place annually in future.  
These actions will embed Health & Safety 
within the organisation and continue to 
ensure a safe working environment for all 
employees.

Pension

The Park Authority is a member of the 
Strathclyde Pension Fund, details of the 
contributions to and movements in the 
fund in the year are stated in notes 17 to 
20.

Auditors

The accounts of the Park Authority are 
audited by an auditor appointed by the 
Auditor General for Scotland in accordance 
with paragraph 25(2) of the National Parks 
(Scotland) Act 2000. His audit report is 
on page 54 and details of the auditors’ 
remuneration are given in note 8.

Strategy and business model

The National Park Partnership Plan (NPPP) sets out the strategy for the National Park 
for the five years from 2012-2017. It provides guidance and focus for all public bodies 
operating within the National Park and outlines the significant outcomes which can be 
achieved for the National Park area through the collaboration of the public, private and 
voluntary sectors as well as Park communities and local businesses. 

The Corporate Plan for 2012-17 describes the objectives which the Authority aims to 
achieve in order to deliver the broader National Park outcomes. The annual business plan 
and team operational plans set out the detailed resource plans for the Authority, showing 
the allocation of financial and staff resources against the key priority areas, including the 
specific projects which will be delivered on an annual basis. This plan is prepared based 
on the Scottish Government’s grant funding to the Authority and also takes account of 
additional income anticipated throughout the year, for example funding from other public 
bodies for joint projects. 

The NPPP is updated annually and is published so that progress against key priorities can 
be reviewed. The Strategy & Policy Group meets quarterly to ensure that there is effective 
corporate planning within the Authority, to advise the Board on strategic development, to 
oversee the design and implementation of significant change and to advise the Board of 
strategic risk. The Delivery Group monitors performance against business and operational 
plans on a quarterly basis.

The Annual Report presented along with these accounts highlights the progress and key 
achievements in delivery against the Corporate Plan. 

Risk

A strategic risk register is in place, overseen by the Executive Team and Audit Committee 
and approved by the Board, to manage any risks in the delivery of the Authority’s Corporate 
Plan and National Park Partnership Plan objectives.  Using categorisations of impact and 
likelihood, nine risks have been categorised as “high” which include: reductions in funding, 
inadequate engagement with stakeholders, staff and Board members, non-delivery of high 
profile projects, changes to the political landscape, national policies and priorities.
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Social, community and human rights

The Authority engages widely with local communities and individuals as part of its work to 
maintain and build a diverse and vibrant economy. Extensive participation arises in a series 
of initiatives throughout the year with Local Development Trusts, Community Councils and 
other groups including Board representation on various groups, such as the Loch Lomond 
& The Trossachs National Park Community Partnership. 

These groups engage in a series of initiatives which include quarterly Area Network 
Meetings, an annual Gathering and project-specific engagement. In addition, the Authority 
is a member of all Community Planning Partnership groups covered by the Park.

During 2013/14, specific and extensive community consultation exercises were 
undertaken as part of drafting two major pieces of strategic guidance:

n	 The Outdoor Recreation Plan (ORP) was launched in June 2013. This was the 
culmination of two years of stakeholder engagement on outdoor recreation 
provision and potential projects. The ORP is an Action Plan that outlines 
commitments and intentions held by all stakeholders to enhance outdoor recreation 
opportunities across Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park over the next five 
years. 

n	 A programme of engagement on updating our Local Plan, promoted as ‘Your 
Community Your Say’ took place throughout the Park’s area including charrette 
events, community briefings, workshops and discussions with landowners and 
partner organisations. This has informed the Main Issues Report which the Board 
approved for consultation at its March 2014 meeting. 

The Board also has five directly elected Members representing specific geographic areas 
of the Park in addition to local representation brought by the Local Authority Members.

The Directors’ Report sets out detail of the ongoing work in relation to developing 
equalities within the National Park and within the Authority.  In terms of the internal  
staffing structure, the Authority’s gender split of staffing at the end of the financial  
year is shown below. 

Headcount at 31 March 2014 Female Male

Directors 2 1

Senior Managers 2 3

Employees 74 50

 
 
Disclosure

As Accountable Officer, as far as I am aware there is no relevant audit information of which 
the Park Authority’s auditors are unaware and I have taken all reasonable steps that ought 
to have been taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 
that the Park Authority’s auditors are aware of the information.

Looking ahead

Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park 
Authority has enjoyed another successful year 
despite the challenging economic situation 
and delivered considerable outputs both 
directly and through extensive partnership 
working with a wide range of public, private 
and Non Governmental Organisations 
and local communities.   The Authority’s 
structure delivers its business through the 
key operational themes of Conservation, 
Visitor Experience and Rural Development, 
supported by Corporate Services all of which 
align closely with the Government’s strategic 
objectives of: Wealthier and Fairer, Healthier, 
Safer & Stronger, Smarter and Greener 
Scotland.  

The Authority continued to contribute to the 
delivery of the National Park Partnership Plan 
2012/17 priorities as set out in our Corporate 
Plan for 2012/17. 

These plans directly link to both specific 
outcomes set out in the plans and ten of 
the key Scottish Government Strategic 
Outcome Targets and include significant 
planned investments in a number of visitor 
infrastructure projects following the award of 
additional capital resources to 31 March 2015.

Signed on behalf of Loch Lomond & The 
Trossachs National Park Authority

 

Fiona Logan
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
24 June 2014
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Directors’ Report
The directors’ report sets out the key aspects of the internal organisational change and development within the Authority during the year 
to 31 March 2014.

Employment policies, consultation

The Authority has a Joint Negotiating 
and Partnership Forum (JNPF) in place, 
through which it ensures effective two-way 
communications with UNISON Trade Union 
representatives in resolving any issues 
arising and consulting on new initiatives. 

During 2013/14 key matters on which 
employees were consulted through the 
JNPF were:  

n	 Pay remit process for 2013/14 
concluded and awards made to staff in 
December 2013

n	 Pay remit proposals for 2014/16

n	 Participation in the Best Companies 
Employee Engagement survey

n	 Development of an Organisational 
Development strategy

n	 Development and implementation  
of a policy review process 

n	 Implementation of a revised 
Performance Review process  

The response rate to the Best Companies 
staff engagement survey in September 
2013 was good (over 80%). Employees 
throughout the organisation were involved 
in developing action plans following 
the survey results and this will set the 
employee engagement agenda for the 
forthcoming year.  A significant part of this 
will be the implementation of a revised 
Performance Review process which will 
focus on employee behaviour as well as 
delivery of results.

Equality & Diversity

In April 2013 the Authority published a report demonstrating how work on equalities has 
been embedded into standard, day to day operations. 

This report included a set of five equalities outcomes which provide a framework to 
promote equality within the work of the Authority, and in the work it undertakes to deliver 
the National Park Partnership Plan. 

The five Equalities Outcomes are:

n	 A greater diversity of people, including young people and those who have a real or 
perceived barrier to accessing the Park, will learn about and help to conserve and 
enhance the Park.

n	 All people will be able to access more barrier-free paths in the Park.

n	 A greater diversity of people, including young people and those who have a real 
or perceived barrier to accessing the Park, will be aware of and able to access 
information about the Park, including its recreation opportunities.

n	 A greater diversity of people are able to access more opportunities within the Park 
and are able to actively participate in decision making.

n	 The Authority will be better informed of equality and diversity characteristics of staff 
so that any barriers may be addressed and general working conditions improved for 
all staff.

The Authority has worked towards these outcomes during 2013/14 and the first progress 
report will be published in April 2015 demonstrating the commitment as an employer and 
as a provider of public services to an extensive range of stakeholders and customers.

The Authority’s on-going work on equalities and creating ‘A Park for All’ is overseen by an 
internal working group comprising staff drawn from across the organisation and is chaired 
by a Head of Service. The Authority is accredited with the ‘Positive About Disabled People’ 
symbol.

Information & Data Security

Significant attention has been given to security of information and data within the public 
sector over the course of 2013/14. The Authority has had no instances of loss of data or 
personal information over the course of the year.  The Governance Statement included 
in these Annual Accounts sets out more information on the Authority’s range of internal 
controls and the review mechanisms to ensure data security.

Signed on behalf of Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park Authority

Fiona Logan
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
24 June 2014

Annual Report & Accounts 2013–14	 43



National Park Authority Members 2013-14

Notes: 

Nature of appointment:  
(a) Locally elected  
(b) Appointed by Scottish Government 
(c) Local Authority nominee 

Committee membership (at present): 
(Pl) – Planning and Access, (A) – Audit,  
(D) – Delivery, (S) – Strategy

The membership of all committees is kept 
under review and amendments made as 
required. 

Board and committee attendance
Board and Committee attendance is 
stated as a percentage of the meetings 
that Members could attend whilst being 
Members of each group.

Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park Authority’s Board comprised up to 17 Members in the year. The Scottish Government 
appoints six Members directly; appoints a further six following Council nominations by the four councils in the Park area (Argyll & Bute, 
West Dunbartonshire, Stirling, and Perth & Kinross) and five are elected locally. The Members serve between two and four years. 

The Members’ periods of office and attendance at Board and Committee meetings is noted below.

Name Nature of 
appointment

Date of 
most recent 

appointment

End of  term Committee 
membership

NPA Board 
attendance

%

Statutory 
committee 
attendance

(Planning & 
Access and 

Audit) %

David McCowan (a) 01/07/2010 30/06/2014 A, Pl 83 86

Owen McKee (a) 01/07/2010 30/06/2014 Pl, S 100 100

David McKenzie (a) 01/07/2010 30/06/2014 A, Pl 100 71

Willie Nisbet (a) 01/07/2010 30/06/2014 D, Pl 100 90

David Warnock (a) 01/07/2010 30/06/2014 D, Pl 67 90

Angus Allan (b) 15/03/2011 30/09/2014 A 100 100

Colin Bayes (b) 02/10/2010 30/09/2014 D, Pl, S 100 80

Petra Biberbach (b) 02/10/2010 30/09/2014 D, Pl 67 30

Linda McKay (b) 02/10/2010 30/09/2014 S 100 n/a

Lindsay Morrison (b) 02/10/2010 30/09/2014 A, S 100 100

Kate Sankey (b) 02/10/2010 30/09/2014 Pl 100 80

Fergus Wood (c) 01/10/2012 30/09/2017 Pl 100 60

Bob Ellis (c) 01/10/2012 30/09/2017 D 67 n/a

Martin Earl (c) 01/10/2012 30/09/2017 D 67 n/a

James Robb (c) 01/10/2012 30/09/2017 A 100 100

George Freeman (c) 01/10/2012 30/09/2017 Pl 100 90

Hazel Sorrell (c) 01/10/2012 30/09/2017 A 33 75
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Summary of Board Members 2013-14

Elected by local residents through postal ballot 

David McCowan was 
elected to Ward 5 (West 
Loch Lomond and 
Balloch) on 1 July 2010 
for four years to June 

2014. He was born in Arden and has lived 
most of his life there. He is director of 
a financial services company based in 
the National Park and also has interests 
in self catering property. David is a 
member of Helensburgh tennis and golf 
clubs and Dunbartonshire Chamber of 
Commerce.

Owen McKee (Depute 
Convenor) was elected 
in July 2010 for a further 
four year term to 3 
July 2014. Formerly a 

specialist in taxation he now runs the 
Village Shop in Lochearnhead. He is 
Vice Chair of Rural Stirling Housing 
Association and Vice Chair of the 
Rural and Islands Housing Forum. His 
community involvements include 
acting as an Independent Examiner to a 
number of local charities, directorships 
with Loch Lomond & The Trossachs 
Community Partnership, Balquhidder, 
Lochearnhead and Strathyre 
Community Development Trust and 
Venachar Ltd.

David McKenzie is a 
resident of Blairmore in 
Argyll. David is a native of 
Glasgow and spent the 
first part of his business 

life working in the ICT industry, living for 
extended periods in Europe, England 
and the USA. Having reached a senior 
executive position in the ICT business, 
David took early retirement and he 
and his wife Patricia decided to move 
to Argyll in 2006. David is passionately 
interested in local history and heritage.  
He is Secretary and Director of the 
Benmore & Kilmun Community 
Development Trust and Secretary 
and Trustee of Historic Kilmun / Argyll 
Mausoleum Limited, a community 
initiative to uncover the 1500 year 
history of Kilmun, including the 
restoration of the 18th century Argyll 
Mausoleum. David is also a Director of 
the Blairmore Village Trust.   

Willie Nisbet was re-
elected to ward 4 (East 
Loch Lomond and Port of 
Menteith) on 1 July 2010 
for a further period of 

four years to June 2014. He has farmed 
on the banks of Loch Lomond for the 
last 30 years, and has worked to bring 
together the competing demands of 
farming, the environment and public 
access. He is a Director of RHET (Royal 
Highland Education Trust) Dumbarton, 
Lomond and Renfrew Initiative.

David Warnock was 
elected to Ward 3 
(Callander) on 1 July 2010 
for a period of four years 
to June 2014. 

He has lived in Callander since 1986 and 
operates a small consultancy business 
working mainly in rural development, 
recreation, outdoor access and cultural 
and natural interpretation. He previously 
worked as Development Officer on the 
award winning Trossachs Trail Tourism 
Management Programme and as Senior 
Countryside Ranger with Stirling District 
Council. He has a degree in Business 
Studies with Environmental Education. 
David has been involved in numerous 
conservation schemes including 
‘Operation Osprey’ at Loch Garten and 
is an active member of various local and 
national conservation groups.  He also 
has over 20 years’ mountain rescue 
experience.
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Angus Allan was 
appointed on 15 March 
2011. He holds an 
Honours degree in 
Agriculture and a Masters 

degree in Business Management. He is 
Depute Principal at South Lanarkshire 
College, East Kilbride. Angus brings to 
the Board a background in agriculture 
and conservation, strong ICT skills, 
experience of delivering challenging 
projects on time and within budget, 
sector-leading experience in low-
energy, low-carbon initiatives and 
strong business management skills from 
his work with partners in industry and 
overseas. His appointment runs to 30 
September 2014.

Colin Bayes is a Chartered 
Environmentalist with an 
extensive career dealing 
with environmental 
issues, latterly as 

Director of Environmental Protection 
and Improvement for the Scottish 
Environment Protection Agency, a 
post he retired from in May 2010. He is 
former chair of the National Advisory 
Group for river basin management 
planning, the Sustainable Urban 
Drainage Scottish Working Party and 
the Pollution Prevention and Control 
industrials’ forum. He was a member 
of the Metropolitan Glasgow Strategic 
Drainage Partnership Board and is now 
a Board Member of Keep Scotland 
Beautiful. Colin lives in Stirling. Colin was 
appointed to the Board commencing 2 
October 2010 until 30 September 2014.

Petra Biberbach is Chief 
Executive of PAS, a 
post which she has held 
since June 2005. With 
a career spanning the 

public, private and third sector, Petra 
brings a wealth of expertise to the post 
in the fields of planning, sustainable 
development, renewable energy, and 
community engagement. Petra is a 
Board member of the ACOSVO and 
has recently been appointed to the 
Historic Environment Strategic Board 
For Scotland. Petra has lived and worked 
in continental Europe (Germany & 
Switzerland) and most recently helped 
to develop a sustainable tourism 
business in the Harz National Park in 
rural Germany. While working for the 
Campaign to Protect Rural England 
(CPRE) she gained considerable 
experience of land use management 
and an in-depth understanding of the 
uniqueness of National Parks. Petra was 
appointed to the Board commencing 2 
October 2010 until 30 September 2014. 

 
Linda McKay (Convener) 
has recently been elected 
for a second term as 
Convener of Loch 
Lomond & The Trossachs 

National Park. She lives in the Trossachs 
and has a long association with the 
National Park through her professional 
role as Principal of Forth Valley College 
and her role as Board member with 
the Enterprise Network. Linda’s other 
governance roles have been in the 
education sector as Chair of the SQA’s 
Qualifications Committee and Advisory 
Council and with the Scottish Police as a 
member of the Police Advisory Board for 
Scotland and a Governor of the Scottish 
Police College. She was awarded an 
MBE for services to the Police in 2000. 
Linda is currently vice chair of the Wood 
Commission looking at the development 
and support of Scotland’s young 
workforce. She has also recently been 
appointed as a Non-Executive Director 
with the Scottish Government where 
she serves on the Strategy Board.

Lindsay Morrison has 
extensive business 
experience with 25 years 
in the aerospace and 
telecommunications 

industries, in engineering, operations 
and human resources, and is currently 
responsible for international employee 
benefits. During this time Lindsay has 
managed a large UK pension scheme, 
and served as a trustee for over eight 
years, which has provided experience in 
the design, operation and management 
of formal committee structures. 
Lindsay’s skills are in business 
management, recognising the critical 
importance of strong leadership, clear 
direction and measurable progress and 
achievement. Lindsay was appointed to 
the Board commencing 2 October 2010 
until 30 September 2014.  

Kate Sankey has 
a background in 
environmental and 
conservation science, 
education and 

community-based learning. She lives in 
Stirlingshire where she runs an organic 
farm and learning centre on the edge 
of Flanders Moss National Nature 
Reserve. She is Vice Chair of Loch 
Lomond and the Trossachs Community 
Partnership; an elected member of 
the Scottish Sustainable Development 
Forum steering group and Chair of 
Forth Environment Link. Kate has been 
a member of the board since 2002 and 
her latest term of office runs until 30 
September 2014.

 

Appointed by Scottish Ministers
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Councillor Martin 
Earl was elected to 
Stirling Council in May 
2012, representing the 
Trossachs and Teith 

Ward. At the Council Martin sits on the 
Education, Community Planning and 
Environment & Housing Committees 
and is Convener of the Public Safety 
Committee. Martin has lived and worked 
in the National Park since its creation. 
Effective communication with and 
involvement of the communities within 
the Park is one of his main priorities.  
He was appointed to the Board on 
1 October 2012 for a period of five 
years. Martin also sits on the Boards of 
Active Stirling and Rural Stirling Housing 
Association.

Councillor Fergus Wood 
is a member of Stirling 
Council for Trossachs 
and Teith ward and was 
Provost of Stirling 2008 

-2012. He is a farmer and tourism 
operator in the Trossachs. He has had 
a long association with the military and 
was awarded the Territorial Decoration 
(TD) in 1978. His hobby, which is now 
a profession, is Celtic music. He was 
re-appointed to the Board on 1 October 
2012 for a further five years.

Councillor James 
Robb is a Chartered 
Engineer and Investment 
Professional with a 
career that has spanned 

project management in the North Sea 
oil construction industry to investment 
banking in the Far East. First elected 
a councillor in 2007 he is a former 
Leader of Argyll & Bute Council.  He was 
appointed to the Board on 1 October 
2012 for a period of five years and 
hopes his skills and wide experience can 
contribute to delivering a successful 
future for the National Park.

Councillor George 
Freeman is originally 
from South Queensferry, 
just outside Edinburgh, 
although he has now 

lived in Garelochhead for over 33 years.  
He has served as an elected councillor 
within Argyll & Bute since 1999 where he 
has held a number of senior positions.  
He represents the National Park on 
the Argyll & Bute Strategic Housing 
Forum.  A large section of his Lomond 
North ward is within the National Park 
boundary.  He was a civil servant having 
worked in the logistics field for 30 years 
prior to taking early retirement in 1999.  
George is also a former Chairman of 
Garelochhead Community Council.  
He was appointed to the Board on 1 
October 2012 for a period of five years.

Councillor Hazel 
Sorrell.  Before being 
elected as Councillor for 
West Dunbartonshire 
Council (Lomond Ward), 

Hazel worked with disabled adults. She 
decided to stand for election to better 
represent vulnerable people. She has 
lived her entire life on the doorstep of 
the National Park and has good local 
knowledge of the surrounding area. 
Hazel has two grown up children and 
lives with her husband Alan in Haldane.  
One of Hazel’s main areas of focus 
will be to make sure local people in 
Balloch, Alexandria and Haldane have a 
better understanding of the work of the 
National Park Authority and find ways 
to maximise the economic benefits 
National Park status can bring to the 
area.  She was appointed to the Board 
on 1 October 2012 for a period of five 
years.

Councillor Bob Ellis. Bob, 
a councillor for 19 years, 
is a member of Perth and 
Kinross Council, where he 
sits on their Environment 

Committee. He is a Trustee of Perth and 
Kinross Countryside Trust, is Convenor 
of Sport & Active Recreation, represents 
Perth & Kinross Council on the CoSLA 
Culture & Sport Working Group and is 
Chairman of the Scottish Association 
of Local Sports Councils (SALSC). 
He is the Chairman of Blairgowrie & 
East Perthshire Tourist Association, 
the Chairman of Blairgowrie & Rattray 
Highland Games and the founder of the 
Cateran Trail.

Appointed by Scottish Ministers on the Nomination by the Local Authorities
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Remuneration Report

PART 1 UNAUDITED
Introduction

The Chief Executive’s remuneration and the Board Members’ fees are directly governed 
by the Scottish Government via their Senior Salaries Review Body. This body also sets, 
each year, the award for the Chief Executive and Board Members.  Salary levels for staff 
are reviewed by the Delivery Group.  However, the overall annual pay remit is subject 
to approval by the Authority’s Sponsoring Body and Pay Policy Unit at the Scottish 
Government and agreement with Unions.  In 2013/14 the Board Members unanimously 
voted against the implementation of the 1% pay award available to Board Members. 

The Authority has in place a Delivery Group consisting of up to six Board Members, chaired 
by Colin Bayes.  

The group members are Petra Biberbach, Councillor Martin Earl, Councillor Bob Ellis, 
William Nisbet, and David Warnock.  

The group’s remit includes: advice to the Board on annual pay awards; and oversight and 
monitoring on behalf of the Board the human resources systems in place for the National 
Park Authority as part of the overall review of performance of the organisation.

For the purposes of this report, persons in senior positions having authority or 
responsibility for directing or controlling the major activities of the Authority are taken to 
comprise the Chief Executive, Directors and Board Members.

PART 2 AUDITED
Disclosure of Remuneration – Chief Executive and Directors

Year ended 
31 March 2014

Basic salary band Other emoluments – 
performance  

related pay

Pension Benefits Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Chief Executive 
Fiona Logan

75-80 0 15 90-100

Directors 
Gordon Watson

60-65 0 12 70-80

Jaki Carnegie 45-50 0 9 50-60

David Cameron Note Note Note Note

Year ended 
31 March 2013

Basic salary band Other emoluments – 
performance related 

pay

Pension Benefits Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Chief Executive  
Fiona Logan

75-80 0 15 85-95

Directors  
Gordon Watson

55-60 0 11 65-75

Grant Moir 50-55 0 10 55-65

David Cameron Note Note Note Note

The median total remuneration of all staff was £26,971. The pay multiple between the mid-point of the highest paid director’s banding and 
the median total remuneration of all staff was 2.87.

Service Contracts

The Chief Executive’s contract is on a 
permanent basis with a three month 
period of notice. Performance Pay is 
calculated by reference to the extent to 
which predetermined objectives have been 
achieved, with a maximum value of 10% of 
basic pay for the Chief Executive. The level 
of bonus is determined by the Convener 
and Depute Convener / Chair of the Delivery 
Group supported by the Human Resources 
Manager. The amount paid in 2013/14 is 
noted below as other emoluments.
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Local Government Pension Scheme

Pension benefits are provided through the 
Strathclyde Pension Fund which provides 
final salary defined benefit schemes to all 
staff.

Further details about the pension scheme 
are contained within notes 17 to 20.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension 
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in 
time. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework 
prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

The real increase in the value of the CETV reflects the increase in 
CETV effectively funded by the employer. It does not include the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid 
by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred 
from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common 
market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Year ended  
31 March 2014

Real increase (decrease) in pension 
value and related lump sum

Total accrued pension at age 60 and 
related lump sum at 31 March 2014

Cash equivalent 
transfer value at 

31 March 2014

Real increase in 
cash equivalent 

transfer value

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Chief Executive 
Fiona Logan

0-2.5 (0-2.5) 5-10 0-5 144 22

Directors 
Gordon Watson

0-2.5 (0-2.5) 20-25 50-55 486 12

Jaki Carnegie 0-2.5 0-2.5 0-5 0-5 16 16

David Cameron Note Note Note Note Note Note

Year ended  
31 March 2013

Real increase (decrease) in pension 
value and related lump sum

Total accrued pension at age 60 and 
related lump sum at 31 March 2014

Cash equivalent 
transfer value at 

31 March 2014

Real increase in 
cash equivalent 

transfer value

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Chief Executive 
Fiona Logan

0-2.5 (0-2.5) 5-10 0-5 58 12

Directors 
Gordon Watson

2.5-5 (0-2.5) 20-25 50-55 280 10

Grant Moir 0-2.5 0-2.5 5-10 15-20 83 4

David Cameron Note Note Note Note Note Note

 

Note: David Cameron is an employee of Cairngorms National Park Authority (CNPA) and is a member of the Civil Service Pension Scheme. 
The details of his remuneration are noted in the CNPA’s Annual report.  Fiona Logan, Gordon Watson and Jaki Carnegie are ordinary 
members of the Strathclyde Pension Fund. David Cameron left the organisation in May 2013.
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ANALYSIS OF BOARD MEMBERS’ FEES AND EXPENSES

*	Note – Board Members’ expenses do not form part of the Remuneration Report subject to audit but are disclosed here for 
information purposes.

Signed on behalf of Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park Authority

Fiona Logan
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
24 June 2014

Board member 2013/14 
Fees £

2013/14 
Expenses* £

2012/13 
Fees  £

2012/13  
Expenses* £

Convener - Linda McKay 19,137 1,187 19,137 1,104

Depute Convener (from 11 March 2013) - 
Owen McKee 

14,352 1,959 14,353 2,917

Depute Convener (to 30 September 2012) - 
Craig Mclaughlin 

0 0 7,157 0

Angus Allan 7,177 153 7,177 497

Colin Bayes 9,568 664 9,569 836

Petra Biberbach 7,177 559 7,177 1,084

Robert Ellis 7,177 307 7,177 882

Anthony Ffinch (to 30 September 2012) 0 0 3,579 0

David McCowan 7,177 0 7,177 0

David McKenzie 7,177 1,094 7,177 1,414

Lindsay Morrison 9,568 0 9,569 0

Willie Nisbet 7,177 624 7,177 351

William Petrie (to 30 September 2012) 0 0 3,579 0

Kate Sankey 7,177 311 7,177 954

Ron Simon (to 30 September 2012) 0 0 3,579 0

David Warnock  7,177 0 7,177 0

Fergus Wood 7,177 541 7,177 308

Martin Earl (from 1 October 2012) 7,177 0 3,597 0

James Robb (from 1 October 2012) 7,177 0 3,597 0

George Freeman (from 1 October 2012) 7,177 0 3,597 0

Hazel Sorrell (from 1 October 2012) 7,177 0 3,597 0

145,926 7,399 149,503 10,347
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Statement of Accountable  
Officer’s Responsibilities
Under Section 25(1) of the National Parks (Scotland) Act 2000, Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park Authority (“the Authority”) is 
required to prepare financial statements for each financial year in the form and on the basis determined by the Scottish Minister, with the 
consent of the Treasury.

The financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must show a true and fair view of the state of the affairs as at the end of 
the financial year and of the income and expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the financial year. 

The Authority’s Management Statement and Financial Memorandum, sets out the roles and responsibilities of Scottish Ministers, the 
sponsoring team in the department, the Board, the Convener and the Chief Executive as Accountable Officer. It includes the following:

 
The Board

Board Members have corporate responsibility for ensuring that the Authority complies with any statutory or administrative requirements 
for the use of public funds and the aims and objectives set by Scottish Ministers. 

 
The Convener 

The Convener of the Authority is personally responsible to the Scottish Ministers for ensuring that the Authority’s policies are compatible 
with those of the Scottish Ministers and that there is probity in the conduct of the Authority’s affairs.

 
The Accountable Officer / Chief Executive 

In accordance with section 15 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000, the Permanent Secretary as the Principal 
Accountable Officer for the Scottish Administration, has designated me, as Chief Executive of Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National 
Park Authority, Accountable Officer for the Authority.

My responsibilities as Accountable Officer for the Authority, including responsibility for propriety and regularity of the finances and for 
keeping proper records are set out in my Memorandum of Accountable Officer responsibilities issued by the Principal Accountable Officer 
on my appointment. This includes requirement to comply with the guidance set out in the Scottish Public Finance Manual.

In preparing those financial statements, I am required to:

n	 observe the financial statements direction issued by Scottish Ministers, including the relevant accounting and disclosure 
requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

n	 make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

n	 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial 
statements; and

n	 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Authority will continue in 
operation. 

In addition, I have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to safeguard the assets of the Authority and to 
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Signed on behalf of Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park Authority

 

Fiona Logan
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
24 June 2014
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Governance Statement 
  For the period ended 31 March 2014

Governance Framework

As Accountable Officer, I have 
responsibility for maintaining a sound 
system of internal control that supports 
the achievement of Loch Lomond & 
The Trossachs National Park Authority’s 
policies, aims and objectives, whilst 
safeguarding the public funds and 
departmental assets for which I am 
personally responsible, in accordance with 
the responsibilities assigned to me in the 
Management Statement for Loch Lomond 
& the Trossachs National Park Authority. 
In discharging this responsibility I am held 
accountable by the Authority’s Board, 
and by Scottish Ministers. In particular, 
the Authority’s Board has Committees in 
place to manage strategy, delivery and for 
Audit, each of which has remits to ensure 
elements of the Authority’s financial 
management and internal control systems, 
including risk management systems, are in 
place and function effectively.  

The Scottish Public Finance Manual 
(SPFM) is issued by the Scottish Ministers 
to provide guidance to the Scottish 
Government and other relevant bodies on 
the proper handling of public funds. It sets 
out the relevant statutory, parliamentary 
and administrative requirements, 
emphasises the need for economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness, and promotes 
good practice and high standards of 
propriety. An element of my responsibility 
as Accountable Officer is to ensure the 
Authority’s internal control systems comply 
with the requirements of the SPFM. 

The Operation of the Board and Sub Committees 

The Board and Committees met on the 
following basis during the year:

n	 The full Board held six formal meetings 
which were open to the public. These 
meetings were supplemented by 
a number of business sessions to 
deliver training to Board members 
and to discuss matters of policy and 
organisational development

n	 The Delivery Group met four times 
to conduct a detailed review of 
performance against Corporate Plan 
targets

n	 The Audit Committee met four times to 
review the work of internal and external 
auditors. The committee also attended 
a training session on audit committee 
roles and responsibilities during the 
year which was facilitated by KPMG

n	 The Strategy Committee met four 
times to review the strategy of the 
organisation and the budget for the 
following financial year.

Full papers are issued to these meetings 
between 7 and 10 days in advance to 
allow the members to fully consider the 
matters for discussion.  Recommendations 
from independent internal and external 
auditors form a key and essential element 
in informing my review of the effectiveness 
of the systems of internal control within the 
Authority. The Board’s Audit Committee 
also plays a vital role in this regard, through 
its review of audit recommendations arising 
from reviews of internal control systems and 
its consideration of proposed management 
action. In particular, the Audit Committee is 

tasked with monitoring the operation of the 
internal control function and bringing any 
material matters to the attention of the full 
Board. Detailed findings of all audit reviews 
are made available to both management 
and the Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee reports quarterly to the Board 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal controls.

The internal audit function is an integral 
element of the Authority’s internal control 
systems.  KPMG LLP was appointed as the 
Authority’s internal auditors in 2011 and 
has undertaken a comprehensive review 
of key internal control systems since their 
appointment. 

Over the course of the year to 31 March 
2014, the internal auditors have reported to 
the Audit Committee on their independent 
reviews of planning processes and 
systems, carbon management and internal 
sustainability reporting, and regulatory 
compliance.  The contract for internal audit 
services with KPMG LLP came to an end in 
2014 and the expectation is that the initial 
contract will be extended for a further year.  

In addition, the external auditors have 
reviewed key systems including a 
positive review of the Internal Auditors’ 
documentation, standards and reporting 
procedures, to form a view on the 
effectiveness of control arrangements and 
support their audit opinion on the financial 
statements. Recommendations made as 
part of this process have been taken on 
board and actions taken where appropriate.

Risk Management

All bodies to which the SPFM is directly applicable must operate a risk management 
strategy in accordance with the relevant guidance issued by Scottish Ministers. The general 
principles for a successful risk management strategy are set out in the SPFM.

The Board recognises the importance of risk management in the activities of the 
organisation. 

Through adoption of risk-based monitoring reports for delivery of Corporate and Business 
Plan objectives, National Park Plan delivery, and for wider assessment of organisational 
performance, the Board has provided leadership on the importance of risk management at 
the highest level within the organisation.
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The Board’s Audit Committee and 
Executive Team are involved in leading on 
embedding risk management processes 
throughout the organisation. Both these 
groups consider the management of 
strategic risk and seek to ensure that 
the required actions to manage risk 
at a strategic level are appropriately 
reflected and incorporated in operational 
delivery plans. The Authority’s strategic 
risk management process is based on a 
schedule of key risks and risk management 
strategy. The strategy and schedule of 
key strategic risks was maintained and 
subject to review by both managers and 
Executive Team and an audit trail was 
maintained through recording of actions 
taken. The risk register was updated and 
refreshed in 2013 and the new risk register 
was presented to the Audit Committee in 
November 2013 for discussion. 

The Audit Committee presented the draft 
risk register to the Board Business session 
in December 2013 for further discussion. 
The process agreed is that the Executive 
will review the Risk Register on a quarterly 
basis, with a report being submitted 
annually to the Audit Committee. In the 
event of any risk being increased to a “high” 
status, this would be escalated to the 
Committee at the earliest opportunity.

The Authority has also adopted a risk 
based approach to the management 
and monitoring of its Operational and 
Corporate Plan delivery, and key aspects of 
organisational performance, whereby any 
increased risk to achievement of targets 
is assessed, reported to the Executive 
Team, and, where required, remedial 
action determined and implemented. Risk 
management is also a core element of 
project appraisal and approval processes.

Data Security

Steps are being taken to ensure that information is being managed in accordance with 
legislation. The Authority’s policy is to maintain the highest level possible of data security in 
its operations. During the year the Authority maintained its systems including:

n	 Maintenance of Cisco ASA 5500 Adaptive Security appliance (Firewall)

n	 Off site data back up by Commvault

n	 Password protected laptops and desktop computers

n	 Designated remote access routes through Cisco VPN.

In terms of information management and security, a requirement to maintain close 
scrutiny on the Authority’s IT and data management functionality is highlighted within 
the strategic risk register and is therefore reviewed by the Executive Team and Audit 
Committee.

Conclusion

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control.  My review is informed by:

n	 The Executive managers within the organisation who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the internal control framework, feedback from 
whom is obtained through weekly meetings of the Executive and Managers teams

n	 The work of the internal auditors, who submit to the organisation’s Audit Committee 
regular reports which includes independent and objective opinion on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the organisation’s systems of internal control together with 
recommendations for improvement

n	 Comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other 
reports.

I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review by both the Board and 
its Audit Committee and a plan is in place to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the systems.

The internal auditors have concluded that the controls tested were found, on the whole, to 
be strong with suggestions for only minor improvements being made. Appropriate action 
is in place to address any weaknesses identified and to ensure continuous improvement of 
the system.

The internal auditor’s annual report for 2013/14 states that, based on the work undertaken 
over the course of the year, the Authority’s systems provide a reasonable basis for 
maintaining control and that the control framework provides reasonable assurance 
regarding the effective and efficient achievement of strategic objectives.

 
 

Fiona Logan
Chief Executive and Accountable Officer
24 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Independent auditor’s report to the members of Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park Authority,  
the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament

I have audited the financial statements of 
Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National 
Park Authority for the year ended 31 
March 2014 under the National Parks 
(Scotland) Act 2000. The financial 
statements comprise of the Statement 
of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, 
the Statement of Financial Position, the 
Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement 
of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity and the 
related notes. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and 
International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, 
and as interpreted and adapted by the 
2013/14 Government Financial Reporting 
Manual (the 2013/14 FReM). 

This report is made solely to the parties 
to whom it is addressed in accordance 
with the Public Finance and Accountability 
(Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other 
purpose. In accordance with paragraph 125 
of the Code of Audit Practice approved 
by the Auditor General for Scotland, I do 
not undertake to have responsibilities to 
members or officers, in their individual 
capacities, or to third parties. 

Respective responsibilities  
of Accountable Officer and Auditor 

As explained more fully in the Statement of 
the Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities 
the Accountable Officer is responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements 
and for being satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view, and is also responsible 
for ensuring the regularity of expenditure 
and income. My responsibility is to audit 
and express an opinion on the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland) as required by the Code 
of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor 
General for Scotland. Those standards 
require me to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for 
Auditors. I am also responsible for giving 
an opinion on the regularity of expenditure 
and income in accordance with the Public 
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 
2000.

Scope of the audit of the  
financial statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or error. 

This includes an assessment of: whether 
the accounting policies are appropriate 
to the body’s circumstances and have 
been consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed; the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by 
the Accountable Officer; and the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
It also involves obtaining evidence about 
the regularity of expenditure and income. 
In addition, I read all the financial and 
non-financial information in the annual 
report to identify material inconsistencies 
with the audited financial statements. 
If I become aware of any apparent 
material misstatements, irregularities, or 
inconsistencies I consider the implications 
for my report.

Opinion on financial statements 

In my opinion the financial statements: 

n	 give a true and fair view in accordance 
with the National Parks (Scotland) Act 
2000 and directions made thereunder 
by the Scottish Ministers of the state of 
the body’s affairs as at 31 March 2014 
and of its net operating cost for the 
year then ended; 

n	 have been properly prepared in 
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by 
the European Union, as interpreted and 
adapted by the 2013/14 FReM; and 

n	 have been prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of the National Parks 
(Scotland) Act 2000 and directions 
made thereunder by the Scottish 
Ministers. 

Opinion on regularity 

In my opinion in all material respects the 
expenditure and income in the financial 
statements were incurred or applied in 
accordance with any applicable enactments 
and guidance issued by the Scottish 
Ministers. 

Opinion on other prescribed matters 

In my opinion: 

n	 the part of the Remuneration Report to 
be audited has been properly prepared 
in accordance with the National Parks 
(Scotland) Act 2000 and directions 
made thereunder by the Scottish 
Ministers; and 

n	 the information given in the Strategic 
Report and Directors’ Report for the 
financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent 
with the financial statements. 

Matters on which I am required  
to report by exception 

I am required to report to you if, in my 
opinion: 

n	 adequate accounting records have not 
been kept; or 

n	 the financial statements and the part 
of the Remuneration Report to be 
audited are not in agreement with the 
accounting records; or 

n	 I have not received all the information 
and explanations I require for my audit; 
or

n	 the Governance Statement does not 
comply with guidance from the Scottish 
Ministers. 

I have nothing to report in respect of these 
matters. 

Asif A Haseeb
Audit Scotland
8 Nelson Mandela Place
Glasgow G2 1BT
24 June 2014
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Annual Accounts

No activities were discontinued during the year.

The Net Expenditure after Interest Receivable but before Impairment represents the activities funded by Scottish Government through its 
Grant in Aid to the National Park Authority. In accordance with the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) the cash Grant in Aid is 
taken directly to the Statement of Taxpayers’ Equity (note 2 refers).

Changes to IAS19 came into effect for the financial year ended 31 March 2014. This has required the prior year figures to be restated by 
£105,000.

The notes on pages 59 - 74 form part of these Accounts.

 
2014

£

Restated
2013

£
Note

Expenditure

Staff and Board Members costs 7 4,720,633 4,971,548

Other Operating Costs 8 1,524,990 1,638,940

Programme Expenditure 4 14,205 19,089

Business Plan Expenditure 5 1,877,597 2,910,801

Depreciation 9 403,793 284,492

Provision for impairment of assets 1/9 1,929,631 0

10,470,849 9,824,870

Income

Planning Fees 3 292,262 198,298

Programme Income 4 14,205 19,089

Business Plan Income 6 268,455 69,926

Other Income 6 257,283 321,240

Loss on disposal of fixed asset (31,454) 0

Total Income 800,751      608,553

Net Expenditure 9,670,098 9,216,317

Less: Interest Receivable (2,223) (790)

Net Expenditure For Year 9,667,875 9,215,527

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the year ended 31 March 2014

The notes on pages 30 to 45 form part of these Accounts

Signed on behalf of the Loch Lomond & The Trossachs National Park Authority

Fiona Logan
Chief Executive & Accountable Officer
Authorised for issue on 24 June 2014

Note
2014

£
2013

£

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 9 9,121,555 7,252,483

Intangible Assets 9 18,102 7,149

Total non-current assets 9,139,657 7,259,632

Current Assets

Inventories 10 9,425 11,133

Trade and other receivables 11 396,942 249,773

Cash and cash equivalents 12 831,472 814,546

Total Current Assets 1,237,839 1,075,452

Total Assets 10,377,496 8,335,084

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables < 1 Year 13 1,538,681 1,326,621

Total Current Liabilities 1,538,681 1,326,621

Non-current assets less net current liabilities 8,838,815 7,008,463

Non-current liabilities

Pension fund liability 18 2,868,000 1,741,000

Total non-current liabilities 2,868,000 1,741,000

Total Liabilities 4,406,681 3,067,621

Assets less liabilities 5,970,815 5,267,463

Taxpayers Equity

General Reserve 2,171,315 2,629,516

Revaluation Reserve 6,661,500 4,375,063

Donated Asset Reserve 6,000 3,884

Pension Reserve (2,868,000) (1,741,000)

5,970,815 5,267,463

The notes on pages 59 - 74 form part of these Accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 31 March 2014

 
2014

£

Restated
2013

£Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Net expenditure before Interest (9,670,098) (9,216,317)

Adjustments for items not involving the movement of cash:

Depreciation 9 403,793 284,492

Provision for impairment of assets 9 1,929,631 0

(Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant & equipment 9 31,454 (4,352)

Pension adjustments in Other Income 6 81,000 40,000

Pension adjustments in Staff Costs 7 105,000 (76,000)

Movements in working capital:

(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables (147,169) 22,160

(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables 212,060 411,149

(Increase) decrease in inventories 1,708 2,830

Net Cash Outflow from Operating Activities (7,052,621) (8,536,038)

Cash flows from investing activities

Bank Interest Received 2,223 790

Purchase of property, plant & equipment 9 (1,512,676) (648,391)

Proceeds from property, plant & equipment 10,000 6,834

Net Cash (Outflow) / Inflow before Financing (8,553,074) (9,176,805)

Cash flows from financing activities

Grant In Aid applied to Operating Costs 2 7,057,324 8,862,609

Grant In Aid applied to Capital Expenditure 2 1,392,676 648,391

Other Grants applied to Capital Expenditure 120,000 0

Net (decrease) increase in Cash and cash equivalents 16,926 334,195

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 12 814,546 480,351

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 12 831,472 814,546

The notes on pages 59 - 74 form part of these Accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2014

General Fund
£

Revaluation 
Reserve

£

Donated
Asset

£

Pension
Fund

£

 
Total

£

Balance at 1 April 2012 2,370,043 4,375,063 3,884 (872,000) 5,876,990

Grant in Aid 9,511,000 9,511,000

Net Expenditure after interest (9,215,527) (9,215,527)

Pension fund actuarial (loss) gain (908,000) (908,000)

Other pension fund gains (losses) 3,000 3,000

Net return on pension assets 40,000 (40,000) 0

Transfer to net fund pension liabilities (76,000) 76,000       0

Balance at 31 March 2013 2,629,516 4,375,063 3,884 (1,741,000) 5,267,463

General Fund
£

Revaluation 
Reserve

£

Donated
Asset

£

Pension
Fund

£

 
Total

£

Balance at 1 April 2013 2,629,516 4,375,063 3,884 (1,741,000) 5,267,463

Net gain on revaluation of 
Property, Plant & Equipment

2,739,227 3,000 2,742,227

Transfer depreciation on re-valued 
assets

453,674 (452,790) (884) 0

Grant in Aid 8,450,000 8,450,000

Other grants 120,000 120,000

Net Expenditure after interest (9,667,875) (9,667,875)

Pension fund actuarial (loss) gain (944,000) (944,000)

Other Pension Fund Gains (Losses) 3,000 3,000

Net return on pension assets 81,000 (81,000) 0

Transfer to net fund pension liabilities 105,000 (105,000) 0

Balance at 31 March 2014 2,171,315 6,661,500 6,000 (2,868,000) 5,970,815
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
For the Year Ended 31 March 2014

1.	 Accounting Policies		

In accordance with the accounts 
direction issued by Scottish 
Ministers under section 19(4) of the 
Public Finance and Accountability 
(Scotland) Act 2000 these accounts 
have been prepared in compliance 
with the principles and disclosure 
requirements of the Government 
Financial Reporting Manual, 
which follows generally accepted 
accounting practice as defined in 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the 
European Union and the Companies 
Act 2006 to the extent that it is 
meaningful and appropriate in the 
public sector context.  The particular 
accounting policies adopted by Loch 
Lomond & The Trossachs National 
Park Authority are described below.  
They have been applied consistently 
in dealing with items considered 
material in relation to the accounts.

The accounts are prepared using 
accounting policies, and, where 
necessary, estimation techniques, 
which are selected as the most 
appropriate for the purpose of giving 
a true and fair view in accordance with 
the principles, set out in International 
Accounting Standard 8: Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors.  Changes in 
accounting policies, which do not give 
rise to a prior year adjustment, are 
reported in the relevant note.  

1.1	 Accounting Convention

These accounts have been 
prepared under the historical cost 
convention modified to account for 
the revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment, intangible assets, 
and, where material, current asset 
investments and inventories to fair 
value as determined by the relevant 
accounting standard.

1.2	 Accounting Period

The accounting period commenced on 1 April 2013 and ended on 31 March 2014.

1.3	 Non-current assets - Property Plant & Equipment

Recognition 
All land and buildings are accounted for as non-current assets unless they are 
deemed to be held-for-sale. 

Valuation 
All land and buildings are restated to current value using professional valuations 
in accordance with IAS 16 every five years. The required quinquennial valuation 
was carried out in March 2014 and the relevant valuations incorporated into these 
Financial Statements. The valuations were carried out by Ryden LLP. The valuations 
are carried out in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) 
Appraisal and Valuation Manual insofar as those terms are consistent with the agreed 
requirements of HM Treasury. 

All other non-current assets are stated at depreciated historical cost. Non-property 
assets values are not subject to indexation adjustments because their individual 
values and/or useful economic life are considered to be below the level at which the 
application of indexation is relevant.

Losses in value reflected in valuations are accounted for in accordance with IAS 
36, Impairment of Assets. The consumption of economic benefits is taken to the 
revaluation reserve to the extent of any previous gain and any further loss is charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.   

Capitalisation 
The minimum level for capitalisation of individual non-current assets within the 
Authority is £600.

1.4	 Non-current assets - Intangible Assets

Copyrights and software licences are disclosed as intangible assets in accordance 
with FReM guidance and are amortised on a straight line basis over their expected 
useful lives.

1.5	 Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all fixed assets, other than land, on a straight line basis 
at rates calculated to write down the cost or valuation of each asset to its estimated 
residual value, as follows:

Freehold Buildings 50 Years or expected life as 
determined by valuer, if shorter.

Leasehold Buildings 50 Years or period of lease 
whichever is shorter

Computer Equipment 3 - 5 Years

Vehicles 5 Years

Vessels 10 to 25 Years

Machinery, Equipment, Furniture & Fittings 3 - 5 Years
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1.6	 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of 
Cost and Net Realisable Value. 

1.7	 Value added Tax

Irrecoverable VAT is included with 
the relevant cost and charged to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure in the period in which it is 
incurred.

1.8	 Leases

Operating lease rentals are charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Net Expenditure over the term of the 
lease.

1.9	 Grant in Aid 

The Authority receives Grant in Aid 
from the Scottish Ministers to finance 
its net expenditure. In accordance 
with financial reporting guidance, 
Grant in Aid is credited to the General 
Fund and net expenditure on activities 
funded by Grant in Aid is charged to 
this fund.

1.10	 Other grants and income

The Authority receives other grants 
to finance its net expenditure. Other 
grants used to purchase fixed assets 
are credited to the General Reserve.

Operating income is income that 
relates directly to the operating 
activities of Loch Lomond & The 
Trossachs National Park Authority.   
It includes fees and charges for 
services provided to external 
customers. 

1.11	 Pension Costs

The Authority is a member 
of Strathclyde Pension Fund 
(administered by Glasgow City 
Council) which is a defined benefit 
scheme. The expected cost of 
providing staff pensions is recognised 
on a systematic basis over the 
expected average remaining life of 
members of the pension fund. Fund 
disclosures as required by IAS 19 are 
given in notes 17 to 20 of the Financial 
Statements.

1.12	 Trade receivables

All material amounts due as at 31 
March 2014 have been brought into 
the Statement of Comprehensive 
Net Expenditure irrespective of when 
actual payments were received.

1.13	 Trade payables

All material amounts due as at 31 
March 2014 have been brought into 
the Statement of Comprehensive 
Net Expenditure irrespective of when 
actual payments were made.

1.14	 Financial Instruments	

The Authority does not hold any 
complex financial instruments. The 
only financial instruments included in 
the accounts are Financial Assets in 
the form of cash, trade receivables 
and accrued income, and Financial 
Liabilities in the form of trade payables 
and accruals. Financial instruments are 
recognised in accordance with IAS 37, 
IAS 39, and IFRS 7 as interpreted and 
adapted by the FReM, initially at fair 
value less provision for impairment. 
A provision for impairment is made 
when there is evidence that the 
Authority will be unable to collect 
an amount due in accordance with 
agreed terms.

1.15	 Segmental reporting

IFRS 8 Segmental Reporting requires 
operating segments to be identified 
on the basis of internal reports about 
components of Loch Lomond & The 
Trossachs National Park Authority 
that are regularly used by the Chief 
Operating decision makers in order 
to allocate resources and assess 
their performance. Loch Lomond 
& The Trossachs National Park 
Authority reports on three segments 
(operational objectives) of Visitor 
Experience, Conservation and Rural 
Development. (See note 5).  
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2.   Grant In Aid

2014
£

2013
£

Grant In Aid allocated to meet operational expenditure 6,514,000 7,030,000

Grant In Aid allocated to meet capital expenditure 1,267,000 967,000

Supplementary Grant In Aid received 685,000 1,530,000

8,466,000 9,527,000

Deduct:

Amounts earmarked for Specific Projects (16,000) (16,000)

Total Grant in Aid received (resource and capital DEL)	
8,450,000 9,511,000

Less: 

Amounts transferred for purchase of Fixed Assets (1,392,676) (648,391)

7,057,324 8,862,609

3.   Planning fees

2014
£

2013
£

Statutory fees on Planning Applications 292,262 198,298

4.   Programme Income & Expenditure

Income
£

Expenditure
£

Net
£

West Highland Way 14,205 14,205 0

Total 2013-14 14,205 14,205 0

Total 2012-13 19,089 19,089 0

The Authority is a member of the West Highland Way Management Group and also manages the funds contributed by members. 

The programme income and expenditure in relation to the management of the West Highland Way is ‘ring-fenced’ by the Authority  
and only used for this specific purpose.
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5.   Analysis of Net Expenditure by Segment

Board 
Members 

and staff costs 

£

Other 
operating & 
programme 

costs
£

Business 
Plan 

Expenditure 

£

Income 
 
 

£

Net Segmental 
Expenditure 

 

£

Visitor Experience 2,782,000 1,021,199 1,177,486 (416,625) 4,564,060

Conservation 683,059 138,482 218,675 (20,735) 1,019,481

Rural Development & 
Planning

1,255,574 379,514 481,436 (444,391) 1,672,133

Total 2013/14 4,720,633 1,539,195 1,877,597 (881,751) 7,255,674

Visitor Experience 2,186,895 988,713 2,273,995 (224,287) 5,225,316

Conservation 988,312 337,695 295,036 (109,659) 1,511,384

Rural Development & 
Planning

1,796,341 331,621 341,770 (314,607) 2,155,125

Total 2012/13 4,971,548 1,658,029 2,910,801 (648,553) 8,891,825

Reconciliation between Operating Segments and Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure £

Net segmental expenditure as above 7,255,674

Items not attributable to segmental activity:

(Excess) deficit of return on pension assets over interest 81,000
Depreciation 403,793
Provision for impairment of assets 1,929,631
Interest Receivable (2,223)

Net Expenditure For Year 9,667,875

6.    Business Plan and Other Income

 
2014

£

Restated 
2013

£

Business plan income 268,455 69,926

Other income:

Agency Reimbursements 45,000 52,350

Boat Registration Scheme 54,620 55,325

Sale of Goods 7,350 9,647

Property rental and recharges 125,805 182,151

Excess (deficit) of return on pension assets over interest (81,000) (40,000)

Miscellaneous 105,508 61,767

257,283 321,240
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7.    staff and Board member costs

Note 2014
£

2013
£

Board members

Fees – see Remuneration Report 145,926 149,503

Social Security Costs 3,010 3,633

148,936 153,136

Staff

Salaries 3,622,700 3,920,059

Social Security Costs 262,667 266,065

Pension Costs 18 587,865 708,288

4,473,232 4,894,412

Add secondments from related party 7,949 0

Deduct: Included in Programme and Business Plan figures (14,484) 0

4,466,697 4,894,412

Adjustments for Pensions Reporting

Add: Current Service Costs 18 694,000 518,000

Less: Employers Contribution 18 (589,000) (715,000)

Less: Past service losses (gains) 18 0 0

Less: Losses / (gains) on curtailment 18 0 121,000

4,571,697 4,818,412

Total Costs 4,720,633 4,971,548
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2014
No.

2013
No.

Average Number of Employees during the Year

Park Board Members 17 17

Staff (incl. Agency)  130 133

Staff Numbers Analysis (Full Time Equivalents)

Permanent 112 116

Fixed Term 8 9

Seasonal 10 7

Agency 0 1

130 133

Numbers of staff with salaries above £50,000 
(including Chief Executive)

£80,001 - £85,000 0 0

£75,001 - £80,000 1 1

£70,001 - £75,000 0 0

£65,001 - £70,000 0 0

£60,001 - £65,000 1 0

£55,001 - £60,000 0 1

£50,001 - £55,000 1 1

Number of VSS departures

Compensation for loss of office 
Exit package cost band

2014
No.

2013
No.

<£10,000 0 2

£10,000 - £25,000 0 5

£25,000 - £50,000 0 8

£50,000 - £75,000 0 1

Total number of exit packages 0 16

Total resource cost (£) 0 444,255

In 2012/13, the Authority introduced a Voluntary Severance Scheme (VSS) for which 18 employees applied and 16 were approved.  The 
total costs of the scheme have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the Strathclyde Pension Fund.  Exit costs were accounted 
for in full in the year of departure.  Where the Authority has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the Authority and not 
by the Strathclyde Pension Fund.

7.   staff and Board member costs (continued)
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8.    Other Operating Costs

2014
£

2013
£

Agency Staff 29,615 33,801

Travel & Subsistence 21,231 33,841

Conferences, Courses & Training 54,980 64,404

Other Staff Costs 48,220 42,690

Property Rent & Rates 243,276 247,475

Energy Costs 64,370 78,425

Property Repairs & Development 161,985 221,998

Other Property Costs 212,681 216,886

Tools and Equipment Consumables 13,555 18,353

Transport Costs 143,518 144,942

Uniforms & Clothing 20,711 24,501

Catering & Hospitality 21,353 19,868

Printing and Stationery 18,634 20,572

Published Materials 12,423 14,477

Telecommunications & Data 84,070 92,336

Legal & Professional Fees 90,307 70,387

Software and IT Supplies 188,732 203,486

Goods for Resale 2,953 6,913

Statutory Advertising 32,886 31,738

Other Administration Costs 32,361 24,887

Contributions to Other Bodies 4,677 4,138

Audit Fee – Internal 12,352 12,722

Audit Fee – External 10,100 10,100

1,524,990 1,638,940
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10.    Inventories

2014
£

2013
£

Visitor Centres 3,040 4,437

On line shop 1,639 2,159

West Highland Way Merchandise 4,746 4,537

9,425 11,133

11.	   Trade receivables and other current assets

2014
£

2013
£

Trade receivables 306,259 141,065

Other receivables 2,869 20,397

Prepayments and accrued income 87,814 88,311

396,942 249,773

Intra-government balances included above:

Other NDPBs 311,324 80,578

Local Government 227 0

Central Government 0 489

311,551 81,067

12.   Cash and cash equivalents

2014
£

2013
£

Bank Accounts 830,833 813,441

Imprest Accounts 639 1,105

831,472 814,546

All balances were held at commercial banks and cash in hand (2013 - all) 
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13.   Trade payables and other current liabilities

2014
£

2013
£

Amounts payable within one year:

Trade payables 670,633 670,285

Accruals and deferred income 830,776 573,601

Other payables 7,723 16,072

Funds held for third party organisations 29,549 66,663

1,538,681 1,326,621

Intra-government balances included above:

Other NDPBs 127,266 20,504

Local Government 60,268 7,779

187,534 28,283

14.   Capital Commitments, Contingent Liabilities and Operating Lease Obligations

There was £265,681 committed but unspent capital expenditure at 31 March 2014 (2013 – nil).

There was £750,000 contingent liability at the Balance Sheet date (2013 - £750,000) which relates to a claim for damages defended 
by the Authority during the year in the Court of Session. The claim arose from an incident in 2006 on a footpath adjacent to one of 
its properties which caused injury to a member of the public. The judgement from the Court of Session was released in February 
2014 and the Court held that pursuers did not prove the case and in any event, the Authority would not have been liable if they had.  
In March 2014, a Notice of Intention to Appeal the judgement was lodged with the Court of Session.  The pursuers have successfully 
applied for legal aid in relation to their Intention to Appeal. The claim amount is £750,000 and legal advice is that the hearing is likely to 
take place during the financial year to 31 March 2015. 

During the year the Authority defended an employment claim for unfair dismissal at an Employment Tribunal. As at the balance sheet 
date the Authority is waiting on the ruling from the Employment Tribunal.

The Authority will hold contingent assets in respect of three monetary bonds totalling £1.332m. These bonds will be lodged by 
Scotgold Resources Limited as a planning condition for the development of a gold and silver mine in Cononish Glen. The bonds will 
only become receivable by the Authority if Scotgold Resources Limited fail to fully reinstate the development site at the end of the 
mining operating period of 10 years, in which case, the Authority would use the bond amounts to undertake the reinstatement works.

 Land & Buildings  
2014

£

Restated 
2013

£

Obligations under non-cancellable Operating Leases:

Within one year 73,385 73,385

Two to five years 75,490 108,490

After five years 167,090 171,194

 Land & Buildings 2014
£

2013
£

Rent receivable under non-cancellable Operating Leases:

Within one year 144,855 132,919

Two to five years 140,395 132,264

After five years 108,083 126,883
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15.     Related Party Transactions	

The Authority is a Non Departmental Public Body of The Scottish Government. The Authority’s sponsoring body is The Scottish 
Government Rural Directorate.

The Scottish Government and Scottish Government Rural Directorate are regarded as related parties with whom there have been 
various material transactions during the year in the normal course of business.

In addition, the Authority has had a number of material transactions with other Government Departments and other Non-
Departmental Public Bodies.

None of the Board Members, Management Team, or other related parties has undertaken any material transactions with the 
Authority during the year. Material transactions cover payments made under contract for goods or services.

16.	 Financial Instruments - Exposure to Risks

The Authority’s resources are met from the Scottish Government through Grant-in-Aid, from Business Plan income and from 
Planning Fees and other income. The Authority has no powers to borrow money or to invest surplus funds. Other than financial 
assets and liabilities which are generated by day-to-day operational activities, the Authority holds no financial instruments.

Liquidity Risk 
The Park Authority’s net revenue resource requirements are financed by Scottish Government, as is its capital expenditure. The 
Authority is not therefore exposed to material liquidity risks.

Credit Risk 
The Park Authority’s funders are mainly Scottish Government or European Union Departments, Executive Agencies or other Public 
Bodies. The Authority is therefore not exposed to any material credit risk.

Foreign Currency Risk 
The Park Authority is not exposed to foreign currency risk.
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17.   Pensions – Revenue Account

In accordance with International Accounting Standard No 19 (IAS19), the Authority is required to disclose certain  
information concerning assets, liabilities, income and expenditure related to pension schemes for its employees.  
This is provided in notes 17 to 20.

In 2013/14, the Authority paid an employer’s contribution of £587,865 (2012/13 - £708,288) representing 19.3% (2012/13 - 19.3%) 
of employees’ pensionable pay into the Strathclyde Pension Fund, which is administered by Glasgow City Council. This fund provides 
members with defined benefits related to pay and service.

The employer’s contribution rate is determined by the Fund’s Actuary based on quadrennial actuarial valuations which determine 
whether employers are contributing sufficiently to maintain the Fund’s solvency.

 
2014

£’000

Restated 
2013

£’000

Amount Charged to Operating Profit:

Current Service Cost 694 518

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss Recognised in SRIE 944 908

Curtailments and Settlements 0 121

Total Operating (Gain) Charge (A) 1,638 1,547

Amount Credited to Other Finance Income:

Expected return on Employer Assets 572 503

Interest Cost (653) (543)

Net Return (Deficit) (B) (81) (40)

Net Revenue Account Cost (A) - (B) 1,719 1,587

 ‘
18.   Pensions – Balance Sheet

The Authority’s assets and liabilities amounted to:
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Fair Value of share of assets in the Strathclyde Pension Fund 13,895 12,404

Present Value of Funded Liabilities (16,700) (14,084)

Present Value of Unfunded Liabilities (63) (61)

Net Pension Liability (2,868) (1,741)
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Fair value of employer assets
The asset values below are at bid value as required under IAS19.

31 March 2014 31 March 2013

Asset Category

Quoted 
Prices in 

Active 
Markets 

£’000

Prices not 
quoted 

in Active 
Markets 

£’000

Total 
 
 
 

£’000

 
 
 
 

%

Quoted 
Prices in 

Active 
Markets 

£’000

Prices not 
quoted 

in Active 
Markets 

£’000

Total 
 
 
 

£’000

 
 
 
 

%

Equity Securities

Consumer 1,280 0 1,280 9% 1,082 1 1,083 9%

Manufacturing 1,114 10 1,124 8% 993 2 995 8%

Energy & Utilities 509 0 509 4% 506 0 506 4%

Financial Institutions 930 0 930 7% 849 1 850 7%

Health and Care 477 0 477 3% 450 0 450 4%

Information Technology 757 0 757 5% 621 0 621 5%

Private Equity

All 0 1,310 1,310 9% 0 1,198 1,198 10%

Real Estate

UK Property 0 973 973 7% 0 796 796 6%

Investment funds and unit trusts

Equities 338 3,891 4,229 31% 330 3,448 3,778 30%

Bonds 0 1,612 1,612 12% 0 1,671 1,671 13%

Commodities 6 0 6 0% 8 0 8 0%

Infrastructure 0 20 20 0% 0 0 0 0%

Derivatives

Other 3 0 3 0% (2) 0 (2) 0%

Cash and cash equivalents

All 0 665 665 5% 0 450 450 4%

Totals 5,414 8,481 13,895 100% 4,837 7,567 12,404 100%
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Liabilities are valued on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, which assesses the future liabilities of the fund discounted 
to their present value. They are based on a valuation as at 31 March 2008 updated for the remaining period to the end of the 
financial year, by the independent actuaries to the Strathclyde Pension Fund. The main assumptions used in the calculations are:

Valuation assumptions 2014 2013

Inflation/ Pension Increase Rate 2.9% p.a. 2.8% p.a 

Salary Increase Rate 5.2% p.a. 5.1% p.a 

Discount Rate 4.3% p.a. 4.5% p.a.

Life Expectancy at age 65 –

Current Pensioners Male 21.0 Yrs 21.0 Yrs

Current Pensioners Female 23.4 Yrs 23.4 Yrs

Future Pensioners Male 23.3 Yrs 23.3 Yrs

Future Pensioners Female 25.3 Yrs 25.3 Yrs

Movement in the Net Pension Deficit during the Year
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Deficit at beginning of the year (1,741) (872)

Add (Deduct)

Current Service Cost (694) (518)

Employers Contributions 589 715

Contributions in respect of unfunded benefit 3 3

Losses on curtailments 0 (121)

Net Return on Assets (81) (40)

(183) 39

Actuarial (Losses)/Gains (944) (908)

Deficit at End of Year (2,868) (1,741)

It should be noted that the pension deficit figure has been specifically produced for the purpose of meeting IAS 19 disclosure 
requirements. The actuarial valuations will take into account the appropriate employers rates and this together with revenues generated 
from the investments will be utilised to meet the Fund’s commitments.

The Actuarial Losses can be further analysed as follows:
2014

£’000
2013

£’000

Experience (Losses) Gains on Fund Assets 284 1,049

Defined Benefit Gains (Losses) (1,228) (1,957)

(944) (908)
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19.   Pensions – Additional Disclosures

Sensitivity Analysis
IAS19 requires the disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods and assumptions used. The sensitivities regarding the 
principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below.

Change in assumptions as at 31 March 2014 Approximate % increase to 
Employer Liability

Approximate monetary amount 
(£’000)

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 14% 2,266

1 year increase in member life expectancy 3% 503

0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 5% 882

0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 8% 1,323

Information about the Defined Benefit Obligation

Liability split Duration

£’000 Percentage %

Active members 11,109 66.5% 26.6

Deferred members 2,697 16.2% 23.9

Pensioner members 2,894 17.3% 14.1

Total 16,700 100.0% 24.0

 
The figures above are for funded obligations only and do not include any unfunded pensioner liabilities. The durations are effective as at 
the previous formal valuation (31 March 2011).

Projected defined benefit cost for the period to 31 March 2015
The table below shows an analysis of the projected amount to be charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the 
period to 31 March 2015.

	

Period ended 31 March 2015 Assets  
£’000

Obligations 
£’000

Net (liability) / asset

£’000 % of pay

Current service cost * 800 (800) (27.4%)

Past service cost including curtailments

Effect of settlements

Total Service Cost 0 800 (800) (27.4%)

Interest income on plan assets 610 610 20.9%

Interest cost on defined benefit obligations 739 (739) (25.3%)

Total Net Interest Cost 610 739 (129) (4.4%)

Total included in Statement of Comprehensive  
Net Expenditure

 
610

 
1,539

 
(929)

 
(31.8%)

* The service cost figures include an allowance for administrative expenses of 0.2% of payroll.

The contributions paid by the Employer are set by the Fund Actuary at each triennial actuarial valuation (the most recent being 31 March 
2011), or at any other time as instructed to do so by the Administering Authority. The contributions payable over the period to 31 March 
2015 are set out in the Rates and Adjustments certificate. For further details on the approach adopted to set contribution rates for the 
Employer please refer to the 2011 actuarial valuation report dated 30 March 2012. The estimate of Employer’s contribution for the period 
to 31 March 2015 will be approximately £564,000. 
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20.   Actuarial Gain (Loss) Recognised in Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity 

2009
£’000

2010
£’000

2011
£’000

2012
£’000

2013
£’000

2014
£’000

Experience Gains (Losses)  
on Assets

(2,260) 1,877 62 (1,199) 1,049 284

Other Actuarial Gains (Losses) 1,291 (5,161) 1,447 695 (1,957) (1,228)

Actuarial Gains and Losses (969) (3,284) 1,509 (504) (908) (944)

Cumulative Actuarial Gains/
(Losses)

590 (2,694) (1,185) (1,689) (2,597) (3,541)

The calculations made for the IAS 19 Report by the actuaries are based on the quadrennial valuation of March 2008. This marks a 
departure from previous years when they were based on roll-forward figures which did not include a number of experience factors now 
reflected. In addition, the valuation of the Scheme Assets at 31 March 2014 is based on estimated bid values in place of mid-market 
values.
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LOCH LOMOND & THE TROSSACHS NATIONAL PARK

DIRECTION BY THE SCOTTISH MINISTERS

1.	 The Scottish Ministers, in pursuance of The National Parks (Scotland) Act 2000, hereby give the following 
direction.

2.	 The statement of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2006, and subsequent years, shall comply 
the accounting principles and disclosure requirements of the edition of the Government Financial Reporting 
Manual (FReM) which is in force for the year for which the statement of accounts are prepared.

3.	 The accounts shall be prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash 
flows for the financial year, and of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year.

4.	 This direction shall be reproduced as an appendix to the statement of accounts. The direction given 
on 27 June 2003 is hereby revoked.

IR HOOPER

Head of Countryside and Natural Heritage Division

Signed by the authority of the Scottish Ministers

Dated: 12 January 2006
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